Aprit 18, 2018

NOTICE TO STOCKHOLDERS:
Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr.
Felipe L. Gozon
Joel Marcelo G. Jimenez
Jaime C. Laya
Artemio V. Panganiban
ManuekR-Quicgue. PFUNED
Felipe S. Yalong

Dear Stockholder:

Please be informed that the Annual Meeting of the Stockholders of GMA Holdings, Inc. is on
May 25, 2018 (Friday) at 10:00 a.m. at Dario (formerly Balducci) G/F Serendra, Bonifacio
Global City, Fort Bonifacio, Taguig City to consider, discuss or vote on the following:

Call to order

Certification and Notice of Quorum

Approval of the Minutes of the Stockholders Meeting held on August 18, 2017.
Report of the President

Ratification of Acts of the Board of Directors for the previous year

Election of Directors, including the Independent Directors

Election of the External Auditor ‘

Consideration of such other business as may properly come before the meeting
Adjournment

CEOoNOOR~ON~

Any stockholder may vote by proxy provided that such authorization remains unrevoked and on
file with, or is submitted to, the undersigned at the 15/F Sagittarius Building, H.V. De la Costa
Street, Salcedo Village, Makati City.

For purposes of the meeting, only stockholders of record as of April 25, 2018 shall be entitled to
vote.

The Organizational Meeting of the Board of Directors shall be held immediately after the Annual
Stockholders’ Meeting. Thank you.

For the Board of Directors:

A A
~ ANNA TERESA M. GOZON
Corporate Secretary



We are not soliciting your proxy. However, if you are unable to attend the meeting but would
like to be represented thereat, you may accomplish the proxy form herein provided below and
submit the same to the Office of the Corporate Secretary on or before May 22, 2018. You may
deliver the proxy or send it in advance through fax no. (632) 812-0008. Validation of proxies
shall be held on May 24, 2018 at 10:00 a.m. at the GMA Network Center.

PROXY

I/We hereby name and appoint , or in his/her absence, the Chairman
of the meeting, as my/our proxy at the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting of GMA Holdings, Inc. to
be held at Dario (formerly Balducci), G/F Serendra, Bonifacio Global City, Fort Bonifacio,
Taguig City on Friday, May 25, 2018 at 10:00 a.m. and at any postponement or adjournment
thereof.

Name

Signature

Date

No. of Shares Held



10.

SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
AMENDED SEC FORM 20-IS ‘

INFORMATION STATEMENT PURSUANT TO SECTION 20
OF THE SECURITIES REGULATION CODE

GMA HOLDINGS, INC.

Check the appropriate box:

[ v ]Preliminary Information Statement

[ ] Definitive Information Statement

Name of Registrant as specified in its charter: GMA HOLDINGS, INC..

Province, country or other jurisdiction of incorporation or organization: PHIL]PPINES
SEC Identification Number CS200602356

BIR Tax Identification Code 244-658-896-000

Address of principal office Postal Code

UNIT 5D TOWER ONE, ONE MCKINLEY PLACE, NEW BONIFACIO GLOBAL CITY,
FORT BONIFACIO, TAGUIG CITY

Registrant’s telephone number, including area code (632) 9827777

Date, time and place of the meeting of security holders

DATE : - May 25, 2018
TIME : 10:00 a.m.
PLACE: Dario (formerly) Balducci, G/F Serendra, Bonifacio Global City,

Fort Bonifacio, Taguig City

Approximate date on which the Information Statement is first to be sent or given to
security holders

May 3, 2018

In case of Proxy Solicitations:

Name of Person Filing the Statement/Solicitor: NOT APPLICABLE

Address and Telephone No.: NOT APPLICABLE



11. Securities registered pursuant to Sections 8 and 12 of the Code or Sections 4 and 8 of
the RSA (information on number of shares and amount of debt is applicable only fo
corporate registrants):

Title of Each Class Number of Shares of Common Stock
Outstanding and Amount of Debt
Qutstanding

Philippine Depositary Receipts (“PDRs”) 765,686,000

12. Are any or all of registrant's securities listed in a Stock Exchange?

PDRs/PHILIPPINE STOCK EXCHANGE

GMA HOLDINGS, INC.

This Information Statement dated May 3, 2018, is being furnished to the stockholders of record
of GMA Holdings, Inc. as of April 25, 2018 in connection with the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting.

WE ARE NOT ASKING YOU FOR A PROXY AND YOU ARE
REQUESTED NOT TO SEND US A PROXY.

A. GENERAL INFORMATION

Item 1. Date, time and place of meeting of security holders.

(a) State the date, time and place of the meeting

Date : May 25, 2018
Time 10:00 a.m.
Place: Dario (formerly Balducci), G/F Serendra, Bonifacio Global City,

Fort Bonifacio, Taguig City

(b) Approximate date on which copies of the information statement are first to be sent to the
security holders: ‘

May 3, 2018



item 2. Dissenters' Right of Appraisal

Title X of the Corporation Code of the Philippines grants to a shareholder the right to dissent
and demand payment of the fair value of his share in certain instances, to wit: (1) in case any
‘amendment to the corporation’s articles of incorporation has the effect of changing and
“restricting the rights of any shareholder or class of shares, or of authorizing preferences in any
respect superior to those of outstanding shares of any class; (2) in case of any sale, lease,
exchange, transfer, mortgage or other disposition of all or substantially all of the corporate
property or assets; (3) in case of merger or consolidation; (4) in case the corporation decides to
invest its funds in another corporation or business or for any purpose other than the primary
purpose; and (5) extension or shortening of the term of corporate existence.

Under Section 42 of the Corporation Code, a stockholder is likewise given an appraisal right in
cases where a corporation decides to invest its funds in another corporation or business. The
appraisal right may be exercised by a stockholder who shall have voted against any of the
foregoing corporate actions proposed in a meeting by making written demand on the
corporation for the payment of the fair value of his/its shares within 30 days after the date on
which the vote is taken. Failure to make written demand within such period shall be deemed a .
waiver of such right. If the proposed action is implemented, the corporation shall pay to a
stockholder surrendering his/its stock certificates the fair value of such shares as of the day
prior to the date on which the vote was taken; however, no payment shall be made to any
stockholder unless the corporation has unrestricted retained earnings in its books to cover such
payment. Within ten days after demanding payment for his shares, a dissenting stockholder
shall submit his stock certificates for notation thereon that such shares are dissenting shares,
failing which, his/its appraisal right shall, at the option of the corporation, terminate. Upon
payment of the purchase price for the shares, the stockholder must transfer his shares to the

corporation.

From the time a demand for payment of fair value until either the abandonment of the corporate
action involved or the purchase of said shares by the corporation, all rights accruing to such
shares, including voting and dividend rights, shall be suspended. If the dissenting stockholder is
not paid the value of the shares within 30 days after the award, his voting and dividend rights

shall be restored. -

None of the proposed corporate actions qualifies as an instance for a possible exercise by
security holders of their appraisal rights under Title X of the Corporation Code of the

Philippines.
ltem 3. Interest of Certain Persons in or Opposition to Matters to be Acted Upon

(a) There is no matter to be acted upon in which any Director or Executive Officer is
involved or had a direct, indirect or substantial interest.

(b) No Director has informed the Company of his opposition to any matter to be acted upon.



B. CONTROL AND COMPENSATION INFORMATION

Securities and Principal Holders Thereof

(a) GMA Holdings, Inc. (“the Company”) has 10,000 common shares subscribed and
outstanding as of March 31, 2018. Every stockholder shall be entitled to one vote for
each common share held as of the established record date. :

(b) All stockholders of record as of the closing of business on April 25, 2018 are entitled to

notice of and to vote at the Company’s Annual Stockholders’ Meeting.

(c) With respect to the election of directors, a stockholder may vote such number of shares
for as many persons as there are directors to be elected or he may accumulate said
shares and give one candidate as many votes as the number of directors to be elected
or he may distribute them on the same principle among as many candidates as he shall
see fit; provided, that the total number of votes cast by him shall not exceed the total
number of shares owned by him multiplied by the whole number of directors to be
elected. :

(d) The following are the information on security ownership of certain record and beneficial
owners and management:

Security Ownership of Certain Record and Beneficial Owners as of March 31, 2018

As of March 31, 2018, the following persons owned at least 5% of the Company’s outstanding
common shares:

Title of Name, Address of Name of Beneficial | Citizenship | No. of Percent-
class Record Owner and Owner and Shares age of
Relationship with Relationship with Held Class
Company Record OQwner :
Common | Felipe L. Gozon The Record owner is Filipino 3,330 33.30
GMA Network Center, the Beneficial Owner
EDSA corner Timog
Avenue, Diliman
Common | Gilbert GMA Network The Record owner is Filipino 3,330 33.30
Center, EDSA corner the Beneficial Owner
Timog Avenue, Diliman o
R. Duavit, Jr.
Common | Joel Marcelo G. Jimenez The Record owner is Filipino 3,330 . 33.30
GMA Network Center, the Beneficial Owner
EDSA corner Timog )
Avenue, Diliman
Total 9,990 99.90

Felipe L. Gozon, Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr. and Joel Marcelo G. Jimenez are significant
stockholders of the Company.

Security Ownership of Management as of March 31, 2018:
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As of March 31, 2018, the Company’s directors and senior officers owned an aggregate of
96,996 common shares of the Company, equivalent to 99.96% of the Company’s issued and
outstanding common capital stock. : :

Title of Name of Amount and | Citizenship | Percentage
Class Beneficial Owner Nature of of Class
Beneficial
Ownership .
Common Felipe L. Gozon . Direct Filipino 33.30
I 3,330
Common Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr. Direct Filipino 33.30
3,330
Common Joel Marcelo G. Jimenez Direct Filipino 33.30
3,330
Common Artemio V. Panganiban Direct Filipino .04
4
Common Jaime C. Laya Direct Filipino .01
1
Common Felipe S. Yalong Direct Filipino .01
' 1
. Total 99,996 99.96

Voting Trust Holders of more than 5%

The Company is not aware of any person holding more than 5% of shares under a voting trust
or similar arrangement.

Changes in Control

The Company is not aware of any arrangement which may have resulted in a change in control
of the Company during the period covered by this report.

Foreign Equity

The Company’s equity (consisting of common shares) are wholly-owned by Filipinos. While the
PDRs issued by the Company may be owned by any person regardless of citizenship or
nationality, the exercise of which is subject to the nationality restriction under the Philippine
Constitution prohibiting foreign ownership in mass media companies. As a result, the
Underlying Shares (GMA Network, Inc. common shares) resulting from an exercise of the
PDRs may only be issued to Philippine citizens or corporations, cooperatives or associations
wholly owned and managed by Philippine citizens. Although holders of PDRs will enjoy
economic rights upon occurrence of certain events in respect of the Underlying Shares, they
will not have any voting rights in respect of the Underlying Shares. Such voting rights will, until
exercise of the PDR, be retained and exercised by GHI or the Company. Pending exercise of
the PDRs, the Shares deliverable on exercise of the PDRs shall be owned by and registered in
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the name of the Issuer. The Shares underlying the PDRs have been delivered and pledged by
the lssuer to the Pledge Trustee, and held to the order and for the benefit of the Hoiders as
security for the delivery of the Shares upon exercise of the PDRs pursuant to the Pledge. Until
an exercise of a PDR, the Issuer, as owner of Shares underlying the relevant PDR, will retain
and exercise such voting rights relating to such Shares.

Item 5. Directors and Executive Officers

Nominees for Election as Members of the Board of Directors

The following were nominated as members of the Board of Directors for the ensuing year
(2018-2019): :

Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr.

Felipe L. Gozon

Joel Marcelo G. Jimenez

Jaime C. Laya (Independent Director)

Artemio V. Panganiban (Independent Director)

All the nominees are incumbent directors. The nominees were formally nominated by Gilberto
R. Duavit, Jr. Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr. has no relationship with the nominated independent
directors, Jaime C. Laya and Artemio V. Panganiban.

The Company’s By-laws provide that all nominations to the Board of Directors shall be
submitted in writing to the Nomination Committee before the date of the regular annual meeting
of the stockholders. The Nomination Committee has reviewed the qualifications of the
nominees and approved the final list of candidates.

The members of the Nomination Committee are as follows:
Felipe L. Gozon (Chairman)
Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr. "

Joel Marcelo G. Jimenez
Jaime C. Laya

Board of Directors, Officers and Senior Management

Under the Articles of Incorporation of the Company, the Board of Directors of the Company
comprises five directors, two of whom are independent. The directors have a term of one year
and are elected annually at the Company’s stockholders meeting. A director who is elected to
fill a vacancy holds the office only for the unexpired term of his predecessor. As of April 30,
2018, the Company’s Board of Directofs and Senior Management were composed of the

following:



Board of Directors : Senior Management
Directors and PoYsei?i:)ﬁ P;(e;?.:)n
Senior Nationality] Position Position St Age
Management was was
Assumed Assumed
. - Chairman/ _
Felipe L. Gozon Filipino | 5i-actor 2007 | N/A N/A 78
Gilberto R. - . President/Chief
Duavit, Jr. Filipino | Director 2007 . Executive Officer 2007 54
Joel Marcelo G. - .
Jimenez Filipino | Director 2007 | N/A N/A 54
- Chief Financial
. _ Corporate Officer/Chief
Felipe S. Yalong Filipino Treasurer 2007 Operating Officer 2012 61
Artemio V. - Independent ‘
Panganiban Filipino Director 2009 | N/A N/A 81
. I Independent
Jaime C. Laya Filipino Director 2008 | N/A | N/A 79
" - Comptroller/Chief
Ronaldo P. Mastrilil  Filipino | N/A N/A Accounting Officer 2007 | 52
Anna Teresa M. - Corporate
Gozon Filipino Secretary 2007 | N/A ‘ N/A 46
Roberto Rafael V. . Vice- .
. "| Filipino | N/A N/A | President/Compliance | 2013 | 61
Lucila Officer

The following are descriptions of the business experience of each of the Company’s directors,
officers and senior management:

Felipe L. Gozon, Filipino, 78 years old, is the Chairman of the Board of Directors and Chief
Executive Officer of GMA Network, Inc.

Atty. Gozon is a Senior Partner at the Law Firm of Belo Gozon Elma Parel Asuncion & Lucila.
He is also the Chairman of the Board/President/CEO of various companies including GMA
Holdings, Inc., Citynet Network Marketing & Productions, Inc., RGMA Network, Inc., Alta
Productions Group, Inc., GMA New Media, Inc., Media Merge Corporation, Digify, Inc., RGMA
Marketing & Productions, Inc., Philippine Entertainment Portal, Inc., Script2010, Inc., FLG
Management and Development Corporation, Gozon Development Corporation, Vista Montana
Realty Development, Inc., Mont-Aire Realty and Development Corporation, BGE Holdings, Inc.,
Kenobe, Inc., Jeata Holdings and Management, Inc., Vitezon, Inc., Palawan Power Generation,
Inc., Catanduanes Power Generation, Inc., Sycamore International Shipping Corp., Lex Realty,
inc., Justitia Realty & Management Corp., Gozon Foundation, Inc., GMA Kapuso Foundation,
Kapwa Ko Mahal Ko Foundation, Inc., and The Potter and Clay Christian School Foundation,

Inc.




Atty. Gozon is also a Director of GMA Worldwide, Inc., GMA Films, Inc., Antipolo Agri-Business
& Land Dev. Corp., and Chamber of Commerce of the Philippine Islands. He is a Trustee of the
Philippine Center for Entrepreneurship Foundation, Inc., and Environmental Heroes Foundation,
Inc. He is also an Advisory Board Member of the Asian TV Awards (2010 to present).

Atty. Gozon is a recipient of several awards for his achievements in law, media, public service,
and business, including the prestigious Chief Justice Special Award given by the Chief Justice
of the Philippines (1991), Presidential Award of Merit given by the Philippine Bar Association
(1990 & 1993), CEO of the Year given by Uno Magazine (2004), Master Entrepreneur —
Philippines (2004) by Ernst and Young, Outstanding Citizen of Malabon Award for Legal and
Business Management by the Kalipunan ng Samahan sa Malabon (KASAMA) (2005), People of
the Year by People Asia Magazine (2005), Outstanding Manilan Award in the field of Social
. Responsibility and Broadcasting given by the City Government of Manila (2011), Quezon City
Gawad Parangal Most Outstanding Citizen for 2011 given by the City Government of Quezon
(2011), Tycoon of the Decade Award given by BizNews Asia (2011), Lifetime Achievement
Award given by the UP Alumni Association (2012), Certificate of Recognition given by the Civil
Aeronautics Board (2012), Personality of the Year for Broadcast Media given by SKAL
International Makati (2013), Outstanding Member-Achiever given by Phi Kappa Phi UP Chapter
(International Honor Society) (2013), Visionary Management CEO Award given by BizNews
Asia (2013), Lifetime Achievement Award given by UP Preparatory High School Alumni (2014),
Entrepreneurship Excellence Award and Best Broadcast CEO Award given by BizNews Asia
(2014), The Rotary Golden Wheel Award for Corporate Media Management given by Rotary
International District 3780 and Quezon City Government (2014), and Global Leadership Award
for Excellence in Media Sector (first Filipino to win the award) given by The Leaders
International together with the American Leadership Development Association in Kuala Lumpur,
Malaysia (2015). He is also listed among Biz News Asia’s Power 100 (2003 to 2010).

Atty. Gozon earned his Bachelor of Laws degree from the University of the Philippines (among
the first 10 of his class) and his Master of Laws degree from Yale University Law School. He
was admitted to the Bar in 1962, placing 13th in the Bar examinations.

Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr., Filipino, 54 years old, is the President and Chief Operating Officer of
the GMA Network, Inc. He has been a Director of the Company since 1999 and is currently the
Chairman of the Network's Executive Committee. Aside from GMA Network, Inc., he is the
Chairman of the Board of GMA Network Films, Inc. and GMA Worldwide, Inc. He also serves
as President and CEO of GMA Holdings, Inc., RGMA Marketing and Productions, Inc., Film
Experts, Inc., and Dual Management and Investments, Inc. He is the President and a Director
of Group Management and Development, Inc; President and Director of MediaMerge Corp.,
Citynet Network Marketing and Productions, Inc.: Director of RGMA Network, Inc., GMA New
Media, Inc., Alta Productions Group, Inc., Optima Digital, Inc., and Mont-Aire Realty and
Development Corp. He also serves as the President and a Trustee of GMA Kapuso Foundation,
Inc. and a Trustee of the Guronasyon Foundation, [nc. and the HERO Foundation.

Mr. Duavit holds a Bachelor's Degree in Philosophy from the University of the Philippines.

Felipe S. Yalong, Filipino, 61 years old, is the Executive Vice President and Chief Financial
Officer of GMA Network, Inc. He is also the Head of the Corporate Services Group of the
Network. He has been a Director of the Company since 2002. Aside from GMA Network, Inc.,
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he also serves as Director and Corporate Treasurer of GMA Holdings, Inc., Scenatrios, Inc., and
GMA Network Films, Inc.; Director of Unicapital, inc., and Majalco Finance and Investments,
Inc.; Corporate Treasurer of RGMA Network, Inc., MediaMerge Corp.; Executive Vice President
of RGMA Marketing and Productions, Inc.; and Corporate Treasurer of the Board of Trustees of
GMA Kapuso Foundation, Inc..

Yalong was named CFO of the Year by ING FINEX in 2013.

He obtained a Bachelor of Science Degree in Business Administration Major in Accounting from
the Philippine School of Business Administration and completed the Management Development
Program at the Asian Institute of Management. He is a Certified Public Accountant.

Jaime C. Laya, Filipino, 79 years old, has been an independent Director of GMA Network, [nc.
since 2007. He is the Chairman and President of Philippine Trust Company (Philtrust Bank),
Director of Ayala Land, Inc., Manila Water Company, Inc., Philippine AXA Life Insurance
Company, Inc., and Charter Ping An Insurance Corporation. He also serves as Chairman of
Don Norberto Ty Foundation, Inc. and Escuela Taller de Filipinas Foundation, Inc.; Trustee of
St. Paul University - Quezon City, Cultural Center of the Philippines, Metropolitan Museum of
Manila, Yuchengco Museum, Fundacién Santiago, Inc., Ayala Foundation, Inc., and other
organizations. He writes a weekly column for the Manila Bulletin.

He was Minister of Budget, 1975-1981; Minister of Education, Culture and Sports, 1984-86;
Chairman of the Monetary Board and Governor, Central Bank of the Philippines, 1981-1984,
Chairman, National Commission for Culture and the Arts, 1996-2001. He was faculty member
of the University of the Philippines, 1957-1978 and Dean of the College of Business
Administration, 1969-1974. In 1986, he founded J.C. Laya & Co., Ltd. (Certified Public
Accountants and Management Consultants) later the Philippine member firm of KPMG
International: he served as the firm's Chairman until his retirement in 2004

He earned his BSBA, magna cum laude, University of the Philippines, 1957; M.S. in Industrial
Management, Georgia Institute of Technology, 1960; Ph.D. in Financial Management, Stanford
University, 1966. He is a Certified Public Accountant.

Chief Justice Artemio V. Panganiban, Filipino, 81 years old, has been an Independent
Director of GMA Network, Inc. since 2007. In 1995, he was named a Justice of the Supreme
Court and in 2005, he was appointed Chief Justice of the Philippines — a position he held until
December 2006. At present, he is also an Independent Director of these listed firms: First
Philippine Holdings Corp., Metro Pacific Investments Corp., Manila Electric Company,
Robinsons Land Corp., GMA Holdings, Inc., Philippine Long Distance Telephone Co., Petron
Corporation, Asian Terminals, and a regular Director of Jollibee Foods Corporation. He is also
an Adviser of Metropolitan Bank and Bank of the Philippine Islands (BPI), Chairman, Board of
Advisers of Metrobank Foundation, Adviser of Double Dragon Properties, Chairman of the .
Board of the Foundation for Liberty and Prosperity, President of the Manila Cathedral Basilica
Foundation, Chairman Emeritus of Philippine Dispute Resolution Center, Inc., and Member,
Advisory Board of the World Bank (Philippines) and of the Asian Institute of Management
Corporate Governance Council. Recently, he was named a Member of the Permanent Court of
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Arbitration based in The Hague, Netherlands. He also is a column writer of The Philippine Daily
Inquirer.

Upon his retirement, he was unanimously conferred a Plaque of Acclamation by the Associate
Justices of the Supreme Court as the “Renaissance Jurist of the 21st Century;” and an Award
of Honor by the Philippine Bar Association. In recognition of his role as a jurist, lawyer, civic
leader, Catholic lay worker, business entrepreneur and youth leader, he had been the recipient
of over 250 other awards from various governments, civic clubs, consumer associations, bar
groups, religious movements and other non-government organizations, both local and

international.

He obtained his Associate in Arts, “With Highest Honors” and later his Bachelor of Laws, with
cum laude and “Most Outstanding Student” honors from the Far Eastern University. He placed
sixth among more than 4,200 candidates who took the 1960 Bar examinations. He is likewise
the recipient of several honorary doctoral degrees from various unijversities.

Anna Teresa M. Gozon, Filipino, 46 years old, has been a Director of GMA Network, Inc. since
2000. She graduated valedictorian from grade school and high school at Colegio San Agustin.
She graduated cum laude, BS Management Engineering from Ateneo de Manila University and
obtained her Bachelor of Laws degree from the University of the Philippines where she
graduated valedictorian, cum laude. She later obtained her Master of Laws from Harvard
University.

She is a junior partner in Belo Gozon Elma Parel Asuncion & Lucila and is an Associate:
Professor in the University of the Philippines, College of Law where she taught Taxation and
Legal History.

She is currently Programming Consuitant to the Chairman/CEO of GMA Network, Inc. and the
President of GMA Films, Inc. and GMA Worldwide, Inc. She is a trustee of GMA Kapuso
Foundation.

Ronaldo P. Mastrili, Filipino, 52 years old, is the Senior Vice President of GMA Network, Inc.’s
Finance and ICT Departments. He obtained his Bachelor of Science in Business and
Economics Degree, Major in Accounting from De La Salle University. He attended the Master
in Business Administration Program from the same university and completed the Executive
Development Program of the Asian Institute of Management. He is a Certified Public
Accountant with expertise in the fields of accounting, auditing, finance, taxation and general
management. He was formerly the Assistant Vice President of Controllership of ABS-CBN and
also served as its Group Internal Auditor before joining GMA Network in March 2001. He also
worked with SGV and Co. in the early part of his career. Mr. Mastrili concurrently holds key
positions in GMA Subsidiaries namely: Comptroller/Chief Accounting Officer of GMA Holdings,
Treasurer of Alta Productions, Director of Script2010 and GMA Kapuso Foundation, and

Comptroller of GMA Films, GMA Kapuso Foundation and GMA Worldwide. :

Roberto Rafael V. Lucila, Filipino, 81 years old, has been the Corporate Secretary of GMA
Network, Inc. since March 27, 2017. He is a co-managing partner/senior partner of the Law
Firm of Belo Gozon Elma Parel Asuncion & Lucila. He currently sits as director in the Philippine
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affiliates of certain European and American companies in the Philippines namely, eMerchant
Asia Inc., eMerchant Pay Asia Inc., Evonik (Philippines) Inc., Time-Life International (Phil.) Inc.
and MeteoGroup Philippines Inc. as well as a member of the Board of Regents of the Bicol
University. He is the Chairman and President of Lucilex, Inc. and the President of Assetlex
Development Corporation, Inc., eMerchant Asia Inc., and eMerchant Pay Asia Inc.. He is a
Court of Appeals Mediator and serves as a Trainor for the Court of Appeals Mediation Training
Program. He is presently a lecturer for Constitutional Law at the University of the Philippines,
College of Law and the University of Asia and the Pacific, School of Law and Government. He
was also a lecturer at the University of the Philippines College of Business Administration, San
Sebastian College Institute of Law and Lyceum College of Law as well as in local and
international conferences such as the Integrated Bar of the Philippines (IBP) National
Convention in 2010, Avenue Capital Global Investor Conference in 2005, and The Law
Association for Asia and the Pacific (LAWASIA) Conference in 1997. He was OIC for the
Legal Department of GMA Network, Inc. from 2001 to 2004 and Office of the President of
Express Telecommunications, Inc. in 1998. He represented the Avenue Asia Capital Group and
Avenue Capital Group as member of the Board of Directors of Citra Metro Manila Tollway
Corporation (CMMTC) from 2004 thru 2012.

He served in the Office of the President of the Philippines as Assistant Executive Secretary for
Legislation from 1990 to September 1992; Chairman of the Presidential Staff in 1991; Chairman
of the Philippine Retirement Authority from 1991 to August 1992; Chairman of the South China
Sea Fishery Disputes Committee from 1991 to July 1992; and Board Member of the Special
Operations Team (now Bases Conversion Development Authority [BCDA])in 1991. In the
Department of Transportation and Communications, he was a Board Member of the Civil
Aeronautics Board from 1990-1991 and of the Philippine National Railways from 1989-1991.

He holds Bachelor of Laws (1980) and Bachelor of Arts in Psychology (1976) degrees from the
University of the Philippines. He was admitted to the Philippine Bar in 1981. He has completed
the Strategic Business Economics Program (SBEP) from the University of Asia and the Pacific
in 1999. He has contributed legal articles for the Supreme Court Reports Annotated (SCRA),
The Lawyer's Review, IBP Law Journal and Magazine, World Bulletin, Getting the Deal Done,
and the Clifford Chance’s “Asia-Pacific Guide to Restructuring and nsolvency Practices
Philippine Chapter” 2013 and 2018, and was the author of the book entitled “Corporate
Rehabilitation in the Philippines.” Atty. Lucila has been recognized as one of the 2013 Asialaw
Asia-Pacific Leading Lawyers in Dispute Resolution, and as a law professional actively engaged
in the areas of Technology Media Telecommunications (TMT) and Insolvency in the

Philippines.

He served in the Office of the President of the Philippines as Assistant Executive Secretary for
Legislation from 1990 to September 1992; Chairman of the Presidential Staff in 1991; Chairman
of the Philippine Retirement Authority from 1991 to August 1992; Chairman of the South China
Sea Fishery Disputes Committee from 1991 to July 1992: and Board Member of the Special
Operations Team (now Bases Conversion Development Authority [BCDA])in 1991. In the
Department of Transportation and Communications, he was a Board Member of the Civil
Aeronautics Board from 1990-1991 and of the Philippine National Railways from 1989-1991.

He holds Bachelor of Laws (1980) and Bachelor of Arts in Psychology (1976) degrees from the
University of the Philippines. He was admitted to the Philippine Bar in 1981. He has completed
the Strategic Business Economics Program (SBEP) from the University of Asia and the Pacific
in 1999. He has contributed legal articles for the Supreme Court Reports Annotated (SCRA),
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The Lawyer's Review, IBP Law Journal and Magazine, World Bulletin, and Getting the Deal
Through, and was the author of the book entitled “Corporate Rehabilitation in the Philippines.”
Atty. Lucila has been recognized as one of the 2013 Asialaw Asia-Pacific Leading Lawyers in
Dispute Resolution, and as a law professional actively engaged in the areas of Technology
Media Telecommunications (TMT) and Insolvency in the Philippines.

Significant Employees

Although the Company will continue to rely on the individual and collective contributions of their
executive officers, the Company is not dependent on the services of any particular employee.

Family Relationships

Anna Teresa M. Gozon is the daughter of Felipe L. Gozon. Felipe L. Gozon’s sister, Carolina L.
Gozon Jimenez, is the mother of Joel Marcelo G. Jimenez.

Involvement in Certain Legal Proceedings

To the best of the Company’s knowledge, during the past five years and up to the date of this
Information Statement, there has been no occurrence of any of the following events which are
material to an evaluation of the ability or integrity of any director, person nominated to become
a director, executive officer, or control person of the Company:

« Any filing of an insolvency or bankruptcy petition by or against any business of which
such person was a general partner or executive officer, either at the time of the
insolvency or within two years prior to that time;

» Any conviction by final judgment in a criminal proceeding, domestic or foreign, or any
pending criminal proceeding, domestic or foreign, of any such person, excluding traffic
violations and other minor offenses;

o Any final and executory order, judgment, or decree of any court of competent
jurisdiction, domestic or foreign, against any such person, permanently or temporarily
enjoining, barring, suspending, or otherwise limiting involvement in any type of business,
securities, commodities, or banking activities; and

e Any final and executory judgment of any such person by a domestic or foreign court of
competent jurisdiction (in a civil action), the SEC, or comparable foreign body, or a
domestic or foreign exchange or electronic marketplace or self-regulatory organization,
for violation of a securities or commodities law.

Resignation of Dirgctors

No director has resigned or declined to stand for re-election to the Board of Directors since the
date of the initial organization of the Company because of a disagreement with the Company on
matters relating to the Company’s operations, policies and practices.
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Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

On May 30, 2008, the Company engaged as its legal counsel Belo Gozon Elma Parel Asuncion
& Lucila (‘BGEPAL”) where Atty. Felipe L. Gozon is a Senior Partner. Atty. Gozon is the
Chairman and one of the major stockholders of the Company. The Company and BGEPAL are
currently negotiating the fees in relation to the services provided, ensuring that the same is
done on an arm’s length basis.

On July 30, 2007, the Company issued PDRs relating to GMA Network, Inc. Common Shares.
The proceeds owing to the selling shareholders of GMA Network, Inc. (“Selling Shareholders™)
whose Common Shares formed the underlying shares of the PDRs in the Company’s Initial
Public Offering were initially held by the Company then remitted to these Selling Shareholders.
Please see Note 10 of the Company’s Financial Statements.

Other than the foregoing, the Company has had no material transactions during the past two
years, nor is any material transaction presently proposed between the Company and parties
that fall outside the definition of “related parties” under SFAS/IAS No. 24, but with whom the
registrants or its related parties have a relationship that enables the parties to negotiate terms
of material transactions that may not be availed from other, more clearly independent parties on
an arm’s length basis.

ltem 6. Compensation of Directors and Executive Officers -

Compensation of Directors and Executive Officers

The following sets forth the summary of the Company’s compensation to its executive officers:

Name and Position

Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr. President and Chief Executive Officer
Felipe S. Yaiong Chief Financial Officer/ Chief Operating Officer
Ronaldo P. Mastrili Chief Accounting Officer/ Comptroller
Year Salaries Bonuses Other Total
(in (in Income (in
thousands) thousands) thousands)
CEOQ and the highest
compensated officers named 2015 - - - -
above
2016 - - - -
2017 - - - -
. 2018 - - - -
(estimate)

Aggregate compensation paid to
all officers and directors as a 2015 - - -

group unnamed
2016 - - - -
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2017 - - - -
2018
(estimate)

No director or officer receives or has received compensation for their services. The By-Laws of
the Company however, provides that each director is entitled to a reasonable per diem
allowance for attendance at each meeting of the Board of Directors. The By-Laws further
provide that the Board may receive and allocate an amount of not more than 10% of the net
income before income tax of the corporation during the preceding year. Such compensation
shall be determined -and apportioned among the directors in such manner as the Board may
deem proper, subject to the approval of the stockholders representing at least a majority of the
stockholders. ‘

The Company has no other arrangement with regard to the remuneration of its existing
directors and officers aside from the compensation received as herein stated.

Empipvment Contracts. Termination of Employment, Change-in-control Arrangements

The directors and executive officers do not have any employment contracts, and are elected to
their respective positions on a yearly basis. The Company has no compensatory plans or
arrangements with respect to any executive officer that would result from the resignation,
retirement or any other termination of such executive officer’s employment.

Item 7. Independent Public Accountants

(a) SyCip Gorres Velayo & Co. ("SGV & Co.") has acted as the Company’s external
auditors since 2007. SGV & Co. is being recommended for re-election at the scheduled
Annual Stockholders’ Meeting on May 25, 2018.

(b) Representatives of SGV & Co. for the current year and for the most recently completed
fiscal year are expected to be present at the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting. They will
have the opportunity to make a statement if they desire to do so and are expected to be
available to respond to appropriate questions.

The Company became publicly listed with the Philippine Stock Exchange on July 30,
2007. Pursuant to Rule 68 paragraph 3 (b) (iv), the Company has engaged Ms. Marydith
C. Miguel, partner of SGV & Co., to sign the Company’s 2017 audited financial

statements.
(c) Changes in and disagreements with accountants on accounting and financial disclosure.

The Company has not had any disagreements on accounting and financial disclosures
with its current external auditors during the two most recent fiscal years or any
subsequent interim period.

(d) SGV & Co. professional fees billed for its year-end financial audit of the Company
covering the years 2017 and 2016. The Company accrued audit fee of Seventy-Five
Thousand Pesos (P75,000) for year 2017 which is the same fee with year 2016. These
included the fees related to financial audit and services for general tax compliance. No
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other fees of any nature were paid.

(e) The Company’s Audit Committee was formed in 2008. The Audit Committee reviews the
fee arrangements with the external auditor and recommends the same to the Board of
Directors.

The members of the Audit Committee are as follows:
Dr. Jaime C. Laya (Chairman)
Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr.

Chief Justice Artemio V. Panganiban
Felipe S. Yalong (Corporate Treasurer)

ltem 8.Compensation Plans
No action shall be taken with respect to any plan pursuant to which cash or non-cash
compensation may be paid or distributed.

C. ISSUANCE AND EXCHANGE OF SECURITIES

item 9. Authorization or Issuance of Securities Other than for Exchange

No action shall be taken with respect to the authorization or issuance of any securities
otherwise than for exchange for outstanding securities of the Company.

item 10. Modification or Exchange of Securities
No action shall be taken with respect to the modification of any class of securities of the

Company, or the issuance or authorization for issuance of one ciass of securities of the
Company in exchange for outstanding securities of another class.

Item 11. Financial and Other Information

In connection with Item 11 hereof, the Company has incorporated by reference the following as
contained in the Management Report prepared in accordance with Rule 68 of the Securities
and Regulation Code:

a. Audited Financial Statements for December 31, 2016 and 2017,

b. Management's Discussion and Analysis or plan of operation; and

c. Information on business overview, properties, legal proceedings, market price of
securities and dividends paid out, and corporate governance
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ltem 12. Mergers, Consolidations, Acquisitions and Similar Matters

No action is to be taken with respect to the mergers, consolidations, acquisitions and similar’
matters.

ltem 13. Acquisition or Disposition of Property

No action is to be taken with respect to the acquisition or dispos.ition of any property.
Item 14. Restatement of Accounts

" No action is to be taken with respect to the restatement of any asset, capital or surplus account
of the Company.

D. OTHER MATTERS

ltem 15. Action with Respect to Reports

a. Approval of the Annual Report of Management and the Audited Financial
Statements for the year ending December 31, 2017.

b. Approval of the Minutes of the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting held on August 18,
2017. The salient matters are summarized as follows:

(1) Approval of the Minutes of the Stockholders’ Meeting held on September
30, 2016. ‘

(2) - Report of the President

(3) Ratification of Acts of the Board of Directors for the Previous Year

(4) Election of Directors, including the Independent Direciors

(5) Election of the External Auditor

c. Ratification of Acts of the Board of Directors for the previous year

All acts and resolutions of the Board of Directors and Management for the period
covering August 18, 2017 to May 25, 2018 adopted in the ordinary course of
business involving ‘ '

> Approval of borrowings, opening of accounts and bank transactions;

> Appointment of signatories;

> Approval of the minutes of the organizational mesting last September

30, 2017

> Approval of the record date and venue of the Annual Stockholders’

Meeting
> Approval of the Financial Statements
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item 16. Matters Not Required to be Submitted

All actions or matters to be submitted in the meeting will require the vote of the security holders.

Item 17. Amendment of Charter, Bylaws or Other Documents

No action is to,be taken with respect to any amendment of the registrant's charter, by-laws or other
documents.

Iltem 18. Other Proposed Action

(a) Ratification of the Acts of the Board of Directors/Corporate Officers:

(i) Declaration on April 5, 2018 by the Company of cash distribution to the PDR
holders of Php of Php 0.50 per share or the same dividend rate that will be paid
by GMA Network, Inc. to its common, shareholders, undiminished by the PDR
holders' proportionate share in the operating cost of GMA Holdings, Inc.. The
foregoing cash distribution in the amount of Php 0.50 per PDR shall be
distributed to the PDR holders as of April 19, 2018 and will be paid out to the
PDR holders on May 16, 2018.

(i) Declaration on March 27, 2017 by the Company of cash distribution to the
PDR holders of Php 0.73 per PDR or the same dividend rate that will be paid by
GMA Network, Inc. to its common shareholders, undiminished by the PDR
holders’ proportionate share in the operating cost of GMA Holdings, Inc. The
foregoing cash distribution in the amount of Php 0.73 per PDR shall be
distributed to the PDR Holders as of April 20, 2017 and will be paid out to the
PDR holders on May 186, 2017,

(i) Declaration on April 8, 2016 by the Company of cash distribution to the
PDR holders of P0.40 per PDR or the same dividend rate that was paid by GMA
Network, Inc. to its common shareholders, undiminished by the PDR holders’
proportionate share in the operating cost of GMA Hoildings, Inc. The foregoing
cash distribution in the amount P0.40 per PDR was distributed to PDR Holders
as of April 25, 2016 and paid out to the PDR holders on May 17, 2016;

(ii) All acts and resolutions of the Board of Directors and Management for
the period covering August 18, 2017 to May 25, 2018 adopted in the ordinary

course of business involving
> Approval of borrowings, opening of accounts and bank transactions;
> Appointment of signatories;
> Approval of the minutes of the organizational meeting last August 18,

2017
> Approval of the record date and venue of the Annual Stockholders’

Meeting
> Approval of the Financial Statements
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(b) Election of the Members of the Board of Directors, including two independent
directors for the ensuing calendar year

(c) Election of the External Auditor

Item 19. Voting Procedures

(a) Vote Required: Motions, in general, require the affirmative vote of a majority of the shares
of the Company’s common stock present and/or represented and entitled to vote. However,
under Philippine law, certain proposed actions may require the vote of at least two thirds
(2/3) of the outstanding capital stock of the Company. The manner of voting is non-
cumulative, except as to the election of directors. ‘

(b) Method: Straight and cumulative voting. In the election of directors, the five (5) nominees
garnering the highest number of votes shall be elected directors. The stockholder may vote
such number of shares for as many person as there are directors to be elected, or he may
cumulate said shares and give one candidate as many votes as the number of directors to
be elected, or he may distribute them on the same principle among as many candidates as
he shall see fit; provided, the total number of votes cast by him shall not exceed the number
of shares owned by him multiplied by the number of directors to be elected.

If there are more than five nominees, voting shall be done by secret ballot. If there are only
five nominees, voting shall be done by a show of hands.

The Corporate SeCretary or the Secretary of the meeting shall be responsible for validating
the votes if the voting is done by secret ballot. The Corporate Secretary or the Secretary of
the meeting shall likewise be responsible if the voting is done by a show of hands. '

Other than the nominees’ election as directors, no director, executive officer, nominee or
associate of the nominees has any substantial interest, direct or indirect by security holdings or
otherwise in any way of the matters to be taken upon during the meeting. The Company has not
received any information that an officer, director or stockholder intends to oppose any action to
be taken at the Annual Stockholders’ Meeting.
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Copies of the latest Unaudited Interim Financial Statements (IFS) will be made available
to each stockholder at least five (5) calendar days before the Annual Meeting. Such
report can be viewed at the GMA Network Inc.’s official website and hard copies of the
company’s IFS and management discussion may be available upon request five (5)
calendar days before the said meeting.

SIGNATURE PAGE

After reasonable inquiry and to the best of my knowledge and belief, | certify that the
information set forth in this repb'rt is true, complete and correct. This report is signed in the City of

Makation_Apn! 19 2018

GMA HOLDINGS, INC.
By:

£ ANNA TERESA M. G%

Corporate Secretary
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MANAGEMENT'S REPORT .

l. Business

GMA Holdings, Inc., (the “Company” or “GHI") was incorporated on February 15, 2006. As a
holding Company, its primary purpose is to invest in, purchase, or otherwise acquire own, hold,
use, sell, assign, transfer, mortgage, pledge, exchange, or otherwise dispose of real and
personal property, including, but not limited to stocks, bonds and debentures. The Company
has no subsidiaries. »

The Philippine Deposit Receipts ("PDRs”) issued by the Company were listed with the
Philippine Stock Exchange (“PSE”) on July 30, 2007.

GHI does not engage in any other business or purpose except in relation to the issuance of the
PDRs relating to the GMA Network, Inc. common shares (“Common Shares”) for as long as the
PDRs are outstanding. GHI has undertaken to perform the obligations under the PDRs and the
acquisition and holding of the Common Shares underlying the PDRs, which includes
maintaining the listing with the PSE, and maintaining its status as a Philippine person for as
long as Philippine law prohibits ownership of Common Shares by non-Philippine persons.

The registered office address of the Company is Unit 5D Tower One, One McKinley Place, New
Bonifacio Global City, Fort Bonifacio, Taguig City.

Transactions with/and or dependence on related parties:

Not applicable.

Employees

The Company had no full-time employees as of March 31, 2018 and does not anticipate in
hiring any employees within the next 12 months. No labor unions are present within the

Company.
il Properties
The Company does not own any real property. The Company does not lease any real property

and does not intend to acquire any within the next 12 months.

. Legal Proceedings

The Company is not, and has not been, a party to any Ie‘gal proceeding.
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v, Market for lssuer's Common Equity and Related Stockholder Matters

Market Information

The Company first offered PDRs relating to GMA Network, Inc. Common Shares on July 30,
2007. These PDRs were listed on the Philippine Stock Exchange on the same date.

Period in Highest Lowest
2017 Closing Closing
1Q 6.10 5.83
2Q ‘ 6.34 5.69
3Q 6.05 5.74
4Q ‘ 5.78 5.39

The Company’s Philippine Deposit Receipts have been listed with the Philippine Stock
Exchange since 2007. The price information as of the close of the latest practicable trading
date, April 18, 2018 is P 5.72 for GMAP (PDRs).

Holders

The total number of shareholders as of March 31, 2018 was seven. The number of shares
subscribed as of March 31, 2018 was 10,000 or P100,000.00. All the common shareholders of

are listed hereundetr:

Name of Shareholder No. of Shares Subscribed Percentage of Ownership
Felipe L. Gozon : 3,330 33.30
Gilberto R. Duavit, Jr. 3,330 33.30
Joel Marcelo G. Jimenez 3,330 33.30
Artemio V. Panganiban 4 .04
Manuel P. 4 .04
Quiogue(deceased)

Jaime C. Laya 1 .01
Felipe S. Yalong 1 .01
Total 10,000 100.00

Dividend Information

Dividends shall be declared only from the surplus profits of the corporation and shall be payable
at such times and in such amounts as the Board of Directors shall determine, either in cash,
shares or property of the Company, or a combination of the three, as said Board of Directors
shall determine. The declaration of stock dividends, however, is subject to the approval of at
least two-thirds of the outstanding capital stock. No dividend which will impair the capital of the

Company shall be declared.
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Distribution of GMA Network, Inc. Cash Dividends to the Company’s PDR Holders

On April 5, 2018 the Company approved a cash distribution to the PDR holders of Php 0.50 per
share or the same dividend rate that will be paid by GMA Network, Inc. to its common,
shareholders, undiminished by the PDR holders’ proportionate share in the operating cost of
GMA Holdings, Inc.. The foregoing cash distribution in the amount of Php 0.50 per PDR shall
be distributed to the PDR holders as of April 19, 2018 and will be paid out to the PDR holders
on May 16, 2018.

On March 27, 2017, the Company approved a cash distribution to the PDR holders of Php 0.73
per share or the same dividend rate that will be paid by GMA Network, Inc. to its common,
shareholders, undiminished by the PDR holders’ proportionate share in the operating cost of
GMA Holdings, Inc.. The foregoing cash distribution in the amount of Php 0.73 per PDR shall
be distributed to the PDR holders as of April 20, 2017 and will be paid out to the PDR holders

on May 16, 2017.

On April 8, 2016, the Company approved a cash distribution to the PDR holders of P0.40 per
PDR or the same dividend rate that was paid by GMA Network, Inc. to its common
shareholders, undiminished by the PDR holders’ proportionate share in the operating cost of
GMA Holdings, Inc. The foregoing cash distribution in the amount P0.40 per PDR was
distributed to PDR Holders as of April 25, 2016 and was paid out to the PDR holders on May
17, 2016.

On August 25, 2015, the Company approved a cash distribution to PDR holders of P0.25 per
share, in relation to dividends declared by GMA, totaling P211.75 million to all shareholders of
record as of April 24, 2015. These were remitted to PDR holders on May 19, 2015.

On April 2, 2014, the Company approved a cash distribution to PDR holders of P0.27 per share,
in relation to dividends declared by GMA, totaling P231.53 million to all shareholders of record
as of April 24, 2014. These were remitted to PDR holders on May 20, 2014.

Cash Dividends to Common Shareholders

On April 5, 2018, the BOD approved the Company's declaration and distribution of Php
3,100,000.00 cash dividends from the retained earnings of the Company as of December 31,
2016 and will be paid out to the Company’s commons stockholders on or before May 16, 2018.

On March 27, 2017, the BOD approved the Company’s declaration and distribution of Php
1,000,000.00 cash dividends from the retained earnings of the Company as of December 31,
2016 and will be paid out to the Company’s commons stockholders on or before May 9, 2017.

On April 8, 2016, the BOD approved the Company’s declaration and distribution of Php 600

thousand dividends from the retained earnings of the corporation as of December 31, 2015 and
was paid out to the Company’s common stockholders on May 17, 2016.
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On August 25. 2015, the BOD approved the Company’s declaration and distribution of Php 500
thousand from the retained earnings of the corporation as of December 31, 2015. This was paid
out to the Company’s common stockholders on October 21, 2015. '

The company has no dividend declaration in 2014 and 2013.

The Company has nbt and will not engage in any other business or purpose except in relation
to the issuance of the PDRs relating to the underlying Common Shares for as long as the PDRs
are outstanding.

Any cash dividends distributed in respect of Common Shares underlying the PDRs received by
the Company shall be applied towards its operating expenses then due for the preceding and
current year. A further amount equal to the operating expenses in the preceding year shall be
set aside to meet operating or other expenses for the succeeding year. Amounts remaining in
excess of such requirements shall be distributed pro rata amongst the outstanding PDRs.

Whenever the Company shall receive or become entitled to receive from the GMA Network, Inc.
any distribution in respect of the Common Shares which consists of a free distribution of
Common Shares, the Company shall grant additional PDRs to holders in respect of such
distributions.

Whenever the Company shall receive or become entitled to receive from the GMA Network, Inc.
any distribution in securities (other than Common Shares) or in other property (other than cash)
in respect of the Common Shares subject to the PDRs, the Company shall forthwith procure
delivery of such securities or other property pro rata to PDR holders or otherwise to the order of
the PDR holder, subject to compliance with applicable laws and regulations in the Philippines.

There are no restrictions on the Company’s ability to pay dividends on common equity.

Recent Sales of Unregistered or Exempt Securities

No sale of unregistered or exempt securities of the Company has occurred within the past three
years. ‘ :

V. Management's Discussion and Analysis or Plan of Operation.

The following discussion should be read in conjunction with the Financial Statements of the
Company that are incorporated into this Information Statement by reference. Such Financial
Statements have been prepared in accordance with Philippine Financial Reporting Standards

(PFRS).

As discussed in the previous section, the Company has not and will not engage in any other
business or purpose except in relation to the issuance of the PDRs relating to the underlying
GMA Network, Inc. Common Shares for as long as the PDRs are outstanding.

Any cash dividends or other cash distributions distributed in respect of Common Shares

received by the Company (or the Pledge Trustee on its behalf) shall be applied toward the
operating expenses then due (including but not limited to applicable taxes, fees and
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maintenance costs charged by the Philippine Stock Exchange) of the Company (the “Operating
Expenses”) for the current and preceding year (as certified by an independent auditor). A
further amount equal to the operating expenses in the preceding year (as certified by an
independent auditor) (the “Operating Fund”) shall be set aside to meet operating or other
expenses for the succeeding year. Any amount in excess of the aggregate of the Operating
Expenses paid and the Operating Fund for such period (as certified by the independent auditor
of the PDR Issuer) shall be distributed to Holders pro rata on the first Business Day after such
cash dividends are received by the Company.

On March 27, 2017, the Company’s BOD approved a cash distribution to the PDR holders of
P0.73 per PDR totaling to P595.24 million to all shareholders of record as of April 20, 2017. On
the same date, the BOD also approved a resolution to pass on the entire amount of the cash
dividends received from GMA without deducting the Company’s 2017 projected operating
expenses. The dividends were remitted to the PDR holders on May 16, 2017

On April 8, 2016, the Company’s BOD. approved a cash distribution to the PDR holders of
P0.40 per PDR totaling to P338.54 million to all shareholders of record as of April 25, 2016. On
the same date, the BOD also approved a resolution. to pass on the entire amount of the cash
dividends received from GMA without deducting the Company's 2016 projected operating
expenses. The dividends were remitted to the PDR holders on May 17, 2016.

On March 30, 2015, the Company’s BOD approved a cash distribution to PDR holders of P0.25
per PDR totaling P211.75 million to all shareholders of record as at April 24, 2015. On the same
date, the BOD also approved a resolution to pass on the entire amount of the cash dividends
received from GMA without deducting the Company’s 2015 projected operating expenses. The
dividends were remitted to PDR holders on May 19, 2015.

KEY PERFORMANCE INDICATORS

The Company’s key performance indicators are focused on the dividends it receives to meet
PDR holders’ expectations and monitor cash and cash equivalents levels to meet its obligations
with respect to the Company’s current and preceding year's operation.

Results of Operations of GMA Holdings Inc.

For the years ended December 31, 2017 and 2016

GMA Holdings Inc. ended the year with a total comprehensive income amounting to P2.77
million, 164% higher than last year's total comprehensive income of P1.05M, due to higher
exercise fees of P2.80 million generated from the conversion of 62,722,000 PDR shares to
common shares as compared to P508 thousand exercise fees from 11,387,000 PDR shares
converted in 2016. Likewise, net income after tax grew to P3.03 million, an increase of P2.00
million from last year's net income after tax of P1.03 miliion. This year's revenues reached
P4.72 million, an improvement of 88% or P2.21 million from last year's level of P2.51 million
mainly brought about by the increase in exercise fees as mentioned earlier. Interest income,
however, declined to P1.92 million in 2017 versus P2.00 million in 2016 due to lower interest
income earned on cash placement.
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Operating expenses for the year 2017 totaled P1.11 million vis-a-vis P1.06 million in 2016
mainly due to the increase in professional fees to P518 thousand versus P383 thousand in
2016. Local business tax went up to P35 thousand from last year's P32 thousand due to higher
2016 tax base used in assessing the 2017 business tax payment. On the other hand, listing
fees amounted to P498 thousand, a decrease of 19% as compared with P614 thousand in 2016
due to the offshoot of lower market cap.

On April 5, 2018, the Board of Directors approved the cash dividend of P3.10 million to be paid
to the common stockholders from the retained earnings of the Company as of December 31,
2017. ‘

Financial Condition. Total assets amounted to P50.51 million, higher by 4% than last year's
P48.71 million primarily due to the increase in cash and cash equivalents, on account of interest
received from Unicapital cash placement and Available-for-sale (AFS) investment. Receivables
also increased subsequent to higher exercise fees. :

For the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015

GMA Holdings Inc. ended the year 2016 with a total comprehensive income amounting to P1.05
million, a reversal from previous year's P91 thousand total comprehensive loss due to 2016
unrealized gain on Available-for-sale (AFS) investment of P20 thousand, brought about by
changes in its fair value. Likewise, net income after tax amounted to P1.03 million, an increase
of P397 thousand from 2015 net income after tax of P635 thousand mainly due to higher
revenues coupled with lower operating expenses. Revenues for 2016 reached P2.51 million, an
improvement of 17% or P363 thousand from previous year's level of P2.14 million mainly
brought about by the increase in exercise fees generating P508 thousand from the conversion
of 11,387,000 PDR shares to common shares compared with P89 thousand from the 1,995,900
PDR shares converted during the same period of 2015. Interest income, however, declined to
P2.00 million in 2016 versus P2.05 million in 2015 due to lower interest income earned on cash

placement.

Operating expenses for the year 2016 totaled P1.06 million vis-a-vis P1.09 million in 2015
mainly due to the decrease in professional fees to P308 thousand versus P400 thousand in
2015. On the other hand, listing fees amounted to P614 thousand, an increase of 7% as
compared with P576 thousand in 2015 due to the offshoot of higher market cap. Local business
tax went up to P32 thousand from previous year's P20 thousand due to higher 2015 tax base
used for 2016 payment.

On March 27, 2017, the Board of Directors approved the Company’s cash dividend declaration
of P1.00 million to its common stockholders from the retained earnings of the Company as of

December 31, 2016.

Financial Condition. Total assets amounted to P48.71 million, a tad higher than P48.22 million
in 2015, primarily due to the increase in accounts receivable caused by more conversion of
PDR shares to common shares in 2016.

For the vears ended December 31, 2015 and 2014 -

GMA Holdings Inc. ended the year 2015 with a pre-tax income of P1.05 million, an increase of
P443 thousand from 2014 pre-tax income of P607 thousand mainly due to higher revenues
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despite higher operating expenses. Likewise, net income after tax amounted to P635 thousand
versus P350 thousand net income after tax in 2014. Revenues in 2015 reached P2.14 million,
an improvement of 30% or P490 thousand from 2014 level of P1.65 million mainly brought
about by the climb in interest income of P2.05 million. For 2015, a total of P2.00 million PDR
shares were converted to common shares which generated exercise fees of P89 thousand vis-
a-vis P9.16 million PDR shares in 2014, for an exercise fee of P409 thousand.

Operating expenses inched up by 5% to P1 .09 million from P1.05 million in 2014 due to higher
professional fees partly negated by lower PSE listing fees and miscellaneous expenses.
Professional fees settled at P400 thousand, 95% more than the P205 thousand posted in 2014
which included payment to BGE for the amendment of Articles of Incorporation. On the other
hand, listing fees of P576 thousand dropped by 17% from P690 thousand in 2014 as an
offshoot of lower market cap. ‘ ‘

On April 8, 2016, the BOD approved the company’s declaration and distribution of P600
thousand dividends from the retained earnings of the corporation as of December 31, 2015,
These were paid out to the Company’s common stockholders on May 17, 2016.

Financial Condition. Total assets amounted to P48.52 million, a tad lower from P48.91 million in
2014, primarily due to the decrease in the fair market value of Available-for-sale investment

(under non-current asset).

KEY VARIABLE AND OTHER QUALITATIVE OR QUANTITATIVE FACTORS

i Trends, demands, commitments, events or uncertainties that will have a material
impact on the issuer’s liquidity. :

As of December 31, 2017, there were no known trends, demands, commitments,
events or uncertainties that will have a material impact on the issuer’s liquidity.

ii. Events that will trigger direct or contingent financial obligation that is material to the
company, including any default or acceleration or an obligation.

As of December 31, 2017, there were no events which may trigger a direct or
contirigent financial obligation that is material to the Company.

iii. Material off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements, obligations (including
contingent obligations), and other relations of the company with unconsolidated
entities or other persons created during the reporting period.

There were no off-balance sheet transactions, arrangements, .oblig‘ations (including
contingent obligations), and other relations of the company with unconsolidated
entities or other persons created as of December 31, 2017.

iv. Material commitments for capital expenditures, the general purpose of such
commitments and the expected sources of funds for such expenditures.

For the period January 1, 2017 to December 31, 2017, there were no material
commitments for capital expenditures.
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V. Any known trends, events or uncertainties that have had or that are reasonably
expected to have a material favorable or unfavorable impact on net
sales/revenues/income from continuing operations.

The Company’s results of operations depend largely on its ability to meet PDR
holders’ expectations from the dividends it receives and to monitor cash and cash
equivalents levels to meet its obligations with respect to the Company’s current and
preceding year's operation. As of December 31, 2017, there were no known trends,
events or uncertainties that are reasonably expected to have a material favorable or
unfavorable impact on net sales/revenues/income from continuing operations.

vi. Significant elements of income or loss that did not arise from the Company’s
continuing operations.

As of December 31, 2017, there were no significant elements of income or loss that
did not arise from the issuer’s continuing operations.

vil. Causes for Material Changes in the Financial Statements

Statements of Financial Position (December 31, 2017 vs. December 31, 2016)

e Current assets increased by P2.05 million to P29.93 million, mainly as a result of
the increase in cash and cash equivalents, on account of interest received from
Unicapital cash placement and AFS investment.

e Current liabilities increased by P20 thousand to P47.70 ‘million due to unpaid
liabilities for trust fees. :

viii. Seasonal aspects that had a material effect on the financial condition or results of
operations.

As of December 31, 2017, there are no seasonal aspects that had a material effect
on the financial condition or results of operations.

INTERIM PERIODS

Copies of the latest unaudited Interim Financial Statements will be made available to
each stockholder at least five (5) calendar days before the Annual Meeting. Such report
can be viewed at the GMA Network Inc.’s official website and hard copies of the
company’s ifs and management discussion may be available upon request five (5)
calendar days before the said meeting.
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V. Corporate Governance

The Board of Directors has established a set of policies and initiatives to ensure that GMA
Holding's business practices are compliant with the best practices in corporate governance. The
Company has adopted a Revised Manual on Corporate Governance to institutionalize the
Company’s adherence to these principles. This Revised Manual clearly sets out the principles
of good management and defines the specific responsibilities of the Board, the Board
Committees, and management within the over-all governance framework.

The Revised Manual sets out the principles of good management and defines the specific
responsibilities of the Board, the Board Committees, and Management within the over-all
governance framework.

The Revised Manual conforms to the requirements of the Phiiippine Securities and Exchange
Commission and covers policies, among others: ‘

(a) independent directors, (b) key board committees (e.g. Executive Committee, Nomination
Committee, Audit Committee, Compensation and Remuneration Commiittee); (c) independent
auditors, (d) internal audit, (e) disclosure system of company's governance policies, (f)
stockholder rights, (g) monitoring and assessment, and (h) penalties for non-compliance.

To ensure adherence to corporate governance, the Board designated a Compliance Officer. The
Compliance Officer is responsible for monitoring compliance by the Company with the provisions and
requirements of good corporate governance.

Based on the Revised Manual on Corporate Governance Manual (attached to the Company's letter to the

Securities and Exchange Commission dated May 22, 2017) as well as the Company's Annual Corporate
Governance Report for 20186 filed with the Securities and Exchange Commission, there have been no

deviations from the Company's Manual as of date.

VIl. Financial Statements

Kindly see attached Audited Financial Statements.
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GMA HOLDINGS, INC.

Unit 5-D Tower One, One McKinley Place, New Bonifacio Global City, Fort Boni

ANNEX"A "

STATEMENT OF MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY.
FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Securities and Exchange Commission
G/F Secretariat Building

PICC Complex, Roxas Boulevard
Pasay City, 1307

The management of GMA Holdings, Inc. is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the..
ded December 31, 2017 and - -

financial statements, including the schedules attached therein, for the years en , _
2016, in accordance with the prescribed financial reporting framework indicated therein, and-for such . .
internal control as management determines is necessary to enable the preparation of financial statements

that are free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the financial statements, management is responsible for assessing the Company’s. ability 1o’ SR
continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using the going’
concern basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate‘the Company ot fo cease operations, .

or has.no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporfing process.

The Board of Difectors reviews and approves the financial statements, including the schedules attached’
therein, and submits the same to the stockholders. ' : o

SyCip Gorres Velayo & Co., the independent auditors appointed by the stockholders, has audited the financial
statements of the company in accordance with Philippine Standards on Auditing, and in their report fo the:
stockholders, have expressed their opinion on the faimess of presentation upon completion of such audit:
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Telephone No. (632) 982-7777 loc. 8001 Fax (632) 928-513;
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

The Board of Directors and Stockholders

GMA Holdings, Inc. :

5D Tower One, One Mckinley Place :

New Global Bonifacio City o
Fort Bonifacio, Taguig City

Report on the Audit of the Financial Statements

Opinion
We have audited the financial statements of GMA Holdings, Inc. (the Company), which comprise the
statements of|financial position-as at December 31,2017 and 201 6, and the statements of comprehensjve
income, statements of changes'in equity and statements of cash flows for each of the three years in the

- period ended _DecemberG 1, 2017, and notes 10 thie-financial statements, including a summary of
significant accounting policies.
In our opinion, the accompanying financial statements present fairly, in all material respects, the financial

position of the Company as at December 31, 2017 and 2016, and its financial performance and its cash
' 4 ended December 31,2017 in accordance with Philippine

flows for each of the three years inthe perio
Financial Reportin g Standards (PFRSs). ,

Basis for Obinion

d our audits in -accofdaﬁce with Philippine Standards on Auditing (PSAs). Our

‘We conducted our
responsibilities under those standardé~are-a:fu‘rther.';d.'cscribed' in the Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit
¢ Company in accordance

of the Financial Statements section-of our report. “Weare independent of th
with the Cods of Ethics for Professional Accountants in the Philippines (Code of Ethics) together with the
ethical requirements that are relevant to-our audit of the financial statements in the Philippines, and we
 have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance with these requirements and the Code of
Ethics. Wellielieve that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to providea

-

basis for our opinion. |

Key Audit' atter

Key audit m ltters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most significance in our
audit of the financial statements of the current period. These matters were addressed in the context of our

audit of the: fnancial statements as.a whole, and in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a
wreaudit addressed the !

separate opinjon on these matters. For the matter below, our descrt t1%1|1).93;:'m;w OUR
UREAU OF INTERNA] REVENUE

matter is proyided in that context. LARGE TAXPAVERS SERVIC
’ LARGE TAXPAYERS 48SISTANCE ())N/iéION
N (

ate APR 13 201 I’I‘SIS

|
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We have fulfilled the .res-ponsibilities described in the Audirdf 's Responsibilities for the Audit of the

Financial Sta
included the g
misstatement

vements section:of our report, including:in relation to these matters. Accordingly, our audit
erformance of procedures designed to respond to our assessment of the risks of material
of the financial statements. The results of our audit procedures, including the procedures

performed to Fddress the matter below, provide the basis for our audit opinion on the accompanying
financial statements.

Fair Valuatio

As at Decemt

- security amOLLn

to the financi

its valuation‘involves the-exercise of Managéement”

used the discq
the spot yield

n of Investment in -Unquoted Debt Security Classified as Available-for-Sale Investment

er 31, 2017, the Company has an available-for-sale (AFS) investment in an unquoted debt
ting to 20,570,501, The valuation-of this investment is a key audit matter as it is material
| statements, representing 41% of the Company’s total assets as at December 31,2017, and
s judgment and-the use of estimatés. The Company .
unted cash flow model to value +the-investment, and the discount rates used were based on
curve. derived from government securities of different tenors plus an estimate of the

counterparty’s credit spread.

' The Compaﬁj
the financial §

Audit Response

We traced the

~ valuation to;the investment agreement, “We reviewed the inp

tatements.

terms (e.g., principal-amount, interest rate, and repayment dates) used in the Company’s
uts. used in determining the discount rates

based on obse

tested the mat
disclosures on the fair value measurement of the AFS investment

rvable yields of benchmark. gov,emment:éecurities. and credit rating of the counterparty. We

hematical accuracy of the Company’s calculation, We also assessed the Company’s
based on the requirements of PFRS 13,

Fair Value %easuremvent.

QOther Information

Management:
included in th
for the year €

report thereon. The SEC Form 20-IS (Definitive Information Statement),

Report for the
auditor’s repﬁ

‘Qur opinion'¢

is responsible for:the other information. The other information comprises the information

¢ SEC Form 20-IS (Definitive Information Statement), SEC Form 17-A and Annual Report
hded December 31, 2017, but does not include the financial statements and our auditor’s
SEC Form 17-A and Annual

. year ended December 31, 2017 are expected to be made available to us after the date of this

rt.

n the financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not express any

form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection

onsibility is to read the other .

with our audits of the financial statements, our resp
nsider.whether the other

information identified above when it becomes available and, in d lnéﬁfﬁ%fmm?w
~ informations materially inconsistent with the financial statements of q};;‘;‘l{gév,t;xi,k ¢ i nedmthq,t
audits, or otherwise appears to be materially misstated. LARGE TAXPAYERS A5 ANPE:'PE \g IL\J/Fsa ON
Date ; APR 13 2018 /A TS1S

/4
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's disclosures on the fair vale of the AFS investment are included in Notes 8, 14 and 15 to -
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Responsibilities of Management and Those Charged with Gove

Management

. accordance ' w

the preparatio
error. '

In preparingthe financial statements; mianagement is respon

continue asa

going concern basis of accounting unless management ei
. operations, of has no realistic alternative but to-do so..

Those charge

3.

rnance for the Financial Statements

Fs responsible for the preparation and fair présentation’of.the financial statements in :
ith PFRSs, and for such'internal control as management determines is necessary t0 enable
n-of financial statements that are free from ‘material inisstatement, whether due to fraud or

sible for assessing the Company’s ability to
--as‘fapplicable‘,‘:matte‘rs'related to-going concern and using the

going concern, disclosing;
ther intends to liquidate the Comparny or to cease

d with ‘governanceare'-respons'ible-for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting procegs.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Financial Statements

Our objective
free from mat

-~ includes our;gpinion. Reasonableassurance is 2 high level of assurance,

audit conduet

Misstatements
aggregate, they coul

basis of these

As partof an-
professional-s

o Identify a

Or error,j

is sufﬁcij'lt an

misstate:
collusion,

'« Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant t

L are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements as a whole are
rial misstatement, whether-dug to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that

but is not a guarantee that an

-d in accordance with PSAs will always detecta material misstatement when it exists.

can arise from:fraud or ‘error-'.and.-are considered material if, individually or in the

d reasonably be expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the

financial statements, \

Ludit in accordance with PSAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain

kepticism throughout the audit. We also:

hd assess the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud
esign and pcrform.audit procedures;responsive.-to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that
d appropriaté to-provide-a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
Iting from:fraud-is-higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involye

entiresu
jons, or the override of internal control,

forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentat

o the audit in order to design audit procedures

that are appropriate in:the.circumstances;:but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the

effectiverjess of the Company’s internal control.-

s Evalnate
estimates

- e Conclude

based on
condition

If we contlude that a material uncertain
report to the related disclosures-in the financial statement :
ur opinion. Our conclusions are based on the audit e‘?/l‘dgm‘(’é,‘ol?z ‘
teport. However, future events or conditions ma} ggggeét‘xé{@gmp‘gr_g}gg cg[%{;é fﬁf{ﬁg%mw

asa goin% concern,

" modify o
auditor’s

he approptiateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of accountin
and related disclosures made by management. ,

on the appropriateness of management’s-use of the going concern basis of accounting and,

he audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or $

s that may cast significant doubt on the Company’s ability o continue as a going concern.

ty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s

’ s ofyif-such disclosures.are inadequate, 10
a;rgeg Pp to the date.df our

Date APR 13 208 A|TSIS
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s -Evaluate ,the.jpvgral1,_pre_spntg}t_i'@n',é;”st'rli'_ctu‘re'and content of ;théy:ﬁnancial "statements, including the - '
disclosures, »ii_nd“Whether:‘tiic"f-ﬁha_ndi‘al”*fsjt'étements*‘fr’épfe's'erit:t’he‘ underlying transactions and events iha
) mannerithat achieves fair presentation.” - -

We commun cate with those""oharggzd with _govemance:rcgarding, among other matters, the planned scope
and timing of the audit.and,ﬂsigniﬁcant.,audif‘ﬁndihgs, including any significant deficiencies in internal
control thatiwe.identify dur’ing our audit. S ‘ .
We also pravide those charggdﬁwi“thf}_goveman‘ce’With a'statement that:-we have complied with relevant
ethical requirements-ﬂr_egar.din'g;i‘ndepgndqnc;e,=and55to,:chmuhiqate'.witli"t'hem.all relationships and.other

matters thatithay reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related

safeguards.

From the majters-communicated with: those charged with governance, we determine those matters that
were of monjcﬁsigniﬁcance«intthe ;agdit‘Qf;the,.zﬁnari,g:ial'.jstatemehts of'the.current period and are therefore
' : : these ' e 'u_ci_i_;o.,r’f's_‘gepért‘unlessf law or regulation
nextremely rare circumstances, we determine that

the key audif|matters. ‘We describe these matters n
precludes public. disclosure about the matter or when; i

ted: in diir report because:the adverse consequences of doing so would |
: benefits of sach communication. .

a matter should not'be communi i t b
reasonably be expected t0 outwei gh'the‘public interest:
ue Regulations 15 2010

Report on the 'S_upplementary »I'_n._fqr,mqt“ion‘-Reqvuir_e._:d, Under Reven

‘ uljposev-Of;foffrﬁing.an-opinionpn{c};q basic financial statements taken -
formation'r venue Regulations 15-2010 in Note 19 to

_ . for purposes:C _ﬁ’liﬁ’g.:WIth-::théT:Buréau of Internal Revenue and is ot
a required pairt-of the basic financial stat ents: Suc} ;infdfrpatioh@is-ﬁth".rvssponsibiiity of the..
managementof GMA Holdings, Inc .T-h_e:iz?fofm?ticn;'has”-beéri}Siibj

“Our audits iNsr;:' conducted £o the
-as @ 'whole. "["hesupplementa

_ ] “Thed _ ected to the anditing procedures’
applied in our auditfof'the.;;baéicliﬁnaﬁqial' statements. Inour opinion, the information is fairly stated, in all
" material respects, in relation’to the basic financial statements taken as a whole.

{

The engage;rrient'.part1ier"on the .audit";res.liltlinvg'-in this- indepéhd_ent auditor’s report is Belinda T. Beng Hui.

SYCIP GORRES VELAYO & CO.

|T. (LWX Hoa
Belinda T. Beng Hui , - ‘
Pariner o _ 7 3
CPA Certifiqate No. 88823
- SEC Accredjtation No.-0923-AR-2:(Group A),
May 1, 2016, valid until May 1, 2019
Tax Identiﬁc'tation No. 153-978-243
BIR Accreditation No, 08-001998-78-2015,
Tune 26, 2015, valid until June 25,2018
PTR No. 66,? 1231, January 9,20 18, Makati City"

JrRUR, L. CASTI O /

April 5, 2018 | | ‘ |
l - | | MA. GRACIA AURORA



. See accompanyi

GMA HOLDINGS, INC.

STAT EME NTS OF FINANCIAL POSITION

December 31
2017 2016
" ASSETS
Current Assets
- Cash and cash equivalents (Notes 7, 14'and 15) £28,805,419 26,888,153
~ Accounts recewabie (Notes 14 and 15) 881,262 555,810 °
Input value—added tax 248,277 441,598
Total Current Assets 29,934,958 27,885,561 -
Noncurrent Asset ‘
Avaliable»for Lsale investment (Notes 8,14 and 15) 120,570,501 20,825,264
A P50,505,459 £48,710,825

LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
Current Liabilities f
Accounts pa;[;ble and other current liabilities E
‘(Notes 9, (14 and 15) P427,045 R403,212
. Due to sharehlolders (Notes 13, 14 and-15) 47,271,600 47,271,600
Income tax payable - 3,526
Total Liabilities 47,698,645 47,678,338
Equity
Capital stock (Note 10) 100,000 100,000
Retained earnings (Note 10) - 3,136,313 1,107,223
Unrealized loss on available-for- sale mvestment (Note: 8) (429,499) (174,736)
“Total Equity : , 2,806,814 1,032,487
i -P50,505,459 P48,710,8235

1g Notes to Financial Siatements.

BuREAL OF !\: i
LARGE TAX ERE SES
LARGE FA)’PAYE-‘% ’\53‘\: T’\N(‘F Jl\/ SiON

APR 13 28%3@ TSIS,

Date

MA. GRACIA AURQRAL. CASTILLO
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GMA. HOLDINGS INC.

- -STATEMENTS OF COMPA‘RVEHENSIVE INCOME

___Years-Ended December 31 .
2017, 2016 2015
- Interest income (Notes 7 and 8) 21,919,260 P1,996,694 R2,052,857
 Exercise fees (Note 6) 2,800,089 508,348 89,103
_ ' i , 4,719,349 2,505,042 2,141,960
: ;';l-'OP'ERAT.ING'EXPENSES' (Note 11) 1,109,892 1,063,320 1,094,413
" INCOME BEFORE INCOME TAX 13,609,457 1,441,722 ‘ 1,047,547
o ‘PROVISION FOR INCOME TAX (Note 12)‘] 580,367 409,506 412,354
. NET INCOME | | 3,029,090 1,032,216 635,193
' OTHER coﬂ@R}:HENSIVE INCOME
. oss) |
" Jtem to be reclassified to profit orloss in .
subsequent perzods-
Unreahzed gain (loss) on avallable~for—sale o '
1nvestment (Note 8) " (254,763) 19,741 (725,928).
. TOTAL COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(LOSS) L o R2,774,327 B1,051,957 (B90,735)
j-Basnc/Dlluted Earnings Per: Share CNote 16) P302.91 £103.22 B63.52
See accompanf;)@g Notes to Fi znanczal Sratements.
fﬂ
) BUREAU OF s T=miva, 1 vENGE
LARGE TAXPY VG E
LARGE TAXPAYF=E 8SIETAN{E DIVISION
pate | APR 13 2018 )| TS18
WV
. Y
MA. GRAGCIA AUPORAL FASTIHLO
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| ..'-GMA HOLDINGS INC

| ‘STATEMENTS OF ‘CHANGES N_IIQUITY

FOR THE' YEARS ENDED: DECEMBER 31,2017, 2016 AND 2015
{
Unrealized
Gain (Loss) on
" Retained - Available-for-Sale
Caplta] Stock - Earnings Investment
- (Note10) . - (Note 10) (Note 8) Total
- Balance as at January 1, 2017 ' ---..2100;000 L BI,107,223 ®174,736) £1,032,487
~Net income ' - 3,029,090 - 3,029,090
" - Other: comprehensnvc loss - - (254,763) (254,763)
~Total comprehcnswe income - 3,029,090 (254,763) 2,774,327
.- Cash dividends_! ! . : - (1,000,000) - (1,000,000)
- :Balance as at. December 31, 2017 e - £100,000 - -P3;136,313 (429,499} 22,806,814 ]
. | kS ) C
- -Balance as at Janfuary 1,2016 .. 8100,000 £675,007 (2194,477) 2580,530
" Net income - 1,032,216 - 1,032,216 .
.- Other comprehensive income - - 19,741 19,741
" Total comprehensive income - 1,032,216 119,741 1,051,957 .
. Castidividends L= (600,000) — (600,000)
:1l"E'alanc'e asat December 31, 2016 £100,000- . P1,107,223 (®174,736) £1,032,487
- Balance as at January 1, 2015 L P100,0007. - B539,814 P531,45] B1,171,265
"Net income’ i - 635,193 - 635,193
T QOthet. comprchensxve loss — — (725,928) (725,928) .
- - Total ‘comprehersive loss - 635,193 . (725,928) . (90,735) -
- Cash dividends | - (500,000) - (500,000) -
" . Balance as-at December 31,2013 ~ R100,000-, 675,007 (P194,477) . B580,530
- See accompanying Notes o Financial 'St;!éments. .
f
Y
QUREAL OF T keiva w7 EnuE B
LARGE Taxiayh =VICE
LARGE TAXPAYERS A3518T NGE DIVISFON '

Date APR 13 2046 TSIS
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© GMA- HOLDINGS INC..

STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS

- See dccompany:’r o Notes to F znanczal Statemem‘s.

BUREAL] OF 17
LARGE Thx i
LARGE TAXPAYERE 457

THMENGE
\/l{ l"

Inate | APR 13 20

518 T‘Jl I0E Uf\/iQION

MA. GRACIA AURORA |

z:% ’I‘SES
4

(“M’T][(‘}

?

y
; " Years Ended December 31
' 2017 . 2016 2015
CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING
. ACTIVITIES ‘
. Income before income tax - . - o LUUP3,609457 21,441,722 ?1,047\,547 -
: "“Ad_]ustment for interest incorie: (Notes')’and 8) . (1,919:260). (1,996,694) (2,052,857)
_~ Operating income {(loss) before workmg capltal : '
. changes : e 1,690,197 (554,972) (1,005,310)
.- “Decrease (incr ease) n: R i '
Accounts receivable. S (346,415) (389,230) 15,550 .
Iriput value-added tax ' 10193,321 0 (74,599) . (64,126)
- Increase in’ acgounts payable. and’ other current RO ' L
. Jiabilities | S 23,473 36,763 124,580 .
- Cash flows prov1ded by (used m) operahons 1,560,576 - (982,038) (929,306)
.. Interest received : 01,940,223 2,029,629 12,021,179 -
- ~Income taxes. paid: NI C U (583,893) .-(406,249) (410,958) -
~ Netcash prov1ded by operatmg act1v1tles ; 12,916,906 . 641,342 680,915
; CASH FLOW FROM A! F]NAN CING
‘ ACTIVITY '
' :Payment of cash d1v1dcnds (Notes 10 and 17) ©:7(999,640) (599,730) (499,595)
S NET INCREASE IN-CASH: AND CASH
' EQUIVALENTS . 41,917,266 41,612 181,320
- “CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS R \
“ AT BEGINNING OFYEAR 126,888,153 26,846,541 26,665,221
-~ CASH AND: ”ASH EQUIVALENTS .
: AT ENDOF:YEAR' (Note 7) . P28;805,419. 26,888,153 P26,846,541



_GMA HOLDINGS,INC.
_ NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Corporate Information
GMA Holdings; Inc. (the:Company)-is-ificorporated in the Philippines to invest in, purchase or
otherwisejacquire and own; tiold, use;sell, assign; transfer, mortgage, pledge, exchange or otherwise

~dispose real.and personaliproperty-of every kind.and description. The registered office address of the’
Company|is 5D Tower One, One MeKiiiley Place, New Global Bonifacio City, Fort'Bonifacio, .
+ Taguig City. - The/Company was registered with the Securities and Exchange Commission (SEC) on
“February 15, 2006. S .

i’l‘-he.acco_ximting and admir’ﬂétf'ét&é‘-fungitioﬁé .of the Company are undertaken by GMA Network, Inc.
(GMA), a company under common control. ‘

In 2007,.:t:he Company{iss'ue'd 'P,hilippine‘{Deposit'-Recéipts (PDRs), which were listed

and traded in
The Philippine-Stock;Exc’ha’ngej,i-Iﬁc. (PSE) (see Note 6). -

ssiness or-purpose other than'in connection with the issuanée

. Ilgatiorisyunzderithe"fPDRé'.and:thexacquisition and holding of

. _the underlying shares. of GMA® cotof the PDRs issued.“This includes maintaining the
',Company?s!'listin'g'.rwi'th?tﬁe»PSEf anid maintaining its status-as-a Philippine person for as long as the

“Philippine Iéiw.prohibits;éu‘m‘'ef%s‘ﬁip:i of GMA?s shares by nori-Philippine person.

: - The Coinf)any;wiilv-not;engag:év;‘iﬁfény'ﬁ
‘of the PDRs; the performance of the

“No reportfable.-.segment 'iri_fdrm'aﬁon-'is}‘ii‘resentéd"as ,the Company’s limited operations are adequately
upresented% in the-statements:of p‘(‘)mpl‘éhensive"income.

+ “The accognpaﬁ_yihg’ ﬁnanci”a:lv.fs‘gdtemeh‘t's'-}of the :Cémpémy iv'.erev approved and authorized for issuance .
in accordance with a resolution’of the Board of Directors (BOD) on April 5, 2018.

-

9. ,-;.:Basis-:oﬂlr repvaration_:‘avn

d:Statement of Compliance

|
S

‘Basis of Preparation R T
S +iThe financial statements-of the Comﬁagy;have‘fbeen-‘preb’ar'ed'Qnra-:historical cost basis, ekcept for
“availableifor-sale (AES)irivestment, w hich'is measured-at fair-value.. The financial statements are
ichis the Company’s functional-and-presentation currency. All

, .fifpresente'd% inPhilippine peso, which
© values arg rounded to the nearest peso; except when otherwise indicated.

“Statement of Compliance - o
. ~The Company’s financial statements have been prepared in’ accordance with Philippine Financial

Reportirig Standards (PFRS).
|

: | o
.3, 'Summaﬁy of Significant:Changes in‘Accounting Policies and Disclosures

Changes in Accounting Policies - BT S
- . . s - e . ) 2URE AV DI ol o v i £ 2 i
The accounting policies adopted are consistent with those of »tHe,pgﬁ%rguFAf}gaﬁ\gcggl.ye ¢cept for

o dr
. . . b - R VAN
~the following new vpmnoumementswhlch the Company ad ogﬁgc@;-gtmpgfla@gggl\l_;;_@@@j ofBgoN
adoption of these pronouncements didnot have significantiimpact ¢ tie Company s figagcial

+position or performance unless otherwise indicated. Date APR 13 2019/l 1818

| W,

i
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. Amenfdment-to PFRS ';12,‘2Disélésure'af Interests in .Oi‘héﬁ_ Entities, Clarification of the Scope of
the Srgndard (Part of Annual Improvements 1o PFRSs 2014 - 2016 Cycle)

The;ailnendments clarify that the disclosure requirements in PFRS 12, other than those relating to

" sumimarized §ﬁnancialéiianMation,ia:pply o an entity’s interest in a subsidiary, a joint venture or
-an.associate (or a-portion-ofitsinterest in a joint venture or an associate) that is classified (or
included in & disposal: group-that is classified) as-held for sale.

|
Adoption of these amendments did nothave anyimpact on the Company’s financial statements.

= Amendments to Philipp‘ine’Accountin"g'-Standard's"(PAS)‘ 7, Statement of Cash Flows, Disclosure
. Initiative ' : - - '
i ::-The.-ainendmén‘ts‘e‘rré'qyiifvé,‘éﬁti‘t‘ids:_t.o;prpyidgdis‘clOsUre"‘of changes intheir liabilities arising from. ’
~ financing: activities‘;';ihcltidiﬁglfbofhfa ph'angésiariSin-g.from..cash'ﬂows and non-cash changes-(such
- as foreign’exchange igains or losses):. - -

L The‘.f‘(‘;,ompany haév;_-prév_ic:{e’c‘lfl;?‘che: revquirddlinformat.i(v)ﬁZin Note 17 to the financial statements. As
~allowed under the/transition provisions «of the standard, the Company did not present comparative
information for the year ended December 31; 2016."

s 'ZAmeﬁdmexltS'Ltb PASf?:I'Q',vaInéb}hé:?%T .djvé‘e's,' Recognition of Defei‘red Tax Assets for ‘Unre&lized

Losses

- The amendrents 'clar?ify’;that3;an-eﬁtity:neé.dsvzto consider whether tax law restricts the sources of-
= ”taxa'b;le.;prOﬁtS'..fagainstWﬁ'i'chifit nay make:deductions on the reversal of that deductible temporary
- difference. .-Fufthenn'orje',rtheéfa_mendments' provide guidance-on how an entity should determine

future taxable profitsiand explain the Gifcumstances in which taxable profit may include the

: 'recov;ery of some assets formore than their carrying amount.

 Since the' Company’s practice is in line with the clarifications issued; the Company does not
= expec%t any effect on'its financial statements. '

Future Changes in.Accounting Policies.. ~~ -~ |
;- -Pronouncements issued butnot yet effective are listed below.. Unless otherwise indicated, the
.+ Companydoes not expect that the future adoption-of the said pronouncements to have a significant
_ “impact on its financial statements. The’Company intends to adopt the following pronouncements
~when these become effective. . - _ '

o “Effective beginning on br’-aﬁ‘e’?Jdnua@ 1,2018

-

3 & Amendments'to PFRS 2, Share-based Paym'éﬁt; Classification and Measurement of Share-based
" Payment Transactions ‘ .

The amendments to PERS ' address three main areas: the effects of vesting conditions on the
measurement of a?caéh-.sefc,tled'sh‘ar'e-based--payment--transéictio'n; the classification of a share-
~ based payment transéctic)ﬁ‘-.;with-éinet;;‘s'ettleinent features for withholding tax obligations; and the
-accounting where:a modification'fo the terms and conditions of a share-based payment '
- transaction 'chén'gés,its:-»classiﬁcaﬁon»froni- cash settled to equity settled.

|
|
i
|
i
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BN

On.%lio'ption,'ventities ~_arévfréquire'd_itd:'applj'f-.vthe"amendments'-without restating prior periods, but ..
- retrospective application-is-permitted if elected for all three amendments and if other criteria are - -
met. [Early application.of the-amendiments is permitted. - :

The:amendments are not applicabl'exto the Company since the ‘:Con_ipany has no share-based
payment transactions. R .

PERS 9, Financial Instruments *

PFRS 9 reflects all phases of:the financial instrumentsproject and replaces PAS 39, F inancial |
Instryments. RecognitfonI‘and‘Medsz}éremént;iahd‘all previous versions of PFRS 9. The standard
introduces.new requirements for classification and measurement, impairment, and hedge
acccfnlmting. Retrospacﬁve.app}icat'ion is required, but comparative information is not
compulsory.. For-hedge accounting, the requirements are generally applied prospectively, with

some limited exceptions.

Theiadoption .of PFRS»rQIWillﬂhévﬁe-(an effect.on ";hé classification and measurement of the.
Company’s ﬁ’nancial'»g'ssets’an‘d<.=iir;pairrfxent.:méthoddlogy-.for-:.ﬁnancial assets, but.will have no
impact on'the classification and measurement of the Company’s financial liabilities. .
The Company is currently assessing the impact of adopting this standard.

Amendments to PFRS -4,JInsur&ncé. Contracts, Applying PERS 9-with PERS 4

The|dmendments address concerns arising from:implementing PFRS 9, the new financial
instryments standard before implementing themnew insurance contracts standard. The

‘_.ame: dments introdute two options:for entities issuing insurance contracts: a temporary .
. exemg)tion from applying PERS:9 :and an‘overlay-approach: The temporary exemption is first
appli

d for reporting periods beginning onor after January 1, 2018, An entity may elect the-
overlay appro,ach'wheni.itl-ﬁrst»a‘ppliesfPF.RS 9'and apply that approach retrospectively to financial
assct%'-designatcd on tratisition to PFRS 9’ The entity restates.comparative information reflecting

verlay approach:if,:ian‘di’onlyz if;the-entity restates comparative information when applying
The dmendments aré-_éno’c’:g;ibﬁli@abie to-théi.Cbmpany since the Company has no activitiesthat are
" predd minantly connected with:insurance or issue insurance contracts. .
PFRS 15, Revenue from Contracts with Customers L

f

PFRS 15 establishes a new five-step:model that will apply to'revenue arising from contracts with

~ customers. Under PFRS 15; Tevenue istecognized-at-an amount that reflects the consideration to
which an entity expects tobe entitled in exchange for transferring goods or services to a
customer. The principles.in PFRS 13 provide a more structured approach to measuring and

recoguizing revenue.

The tew revenue standard is applicable to all entities and will supersede all current revenue

recogniti‘on...req_uirements#under'.PFR-S'. Either a full or modified retrospective application is .

- required for annual periods beginning on or after January 1, 2018, Early adoption is permitteil.

The Company is currently assessing the impact of adopting this standard.
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- Amendments to'PAS-,ZS;’ Measuring an Associate or Joint Venture at Fair Value (Part of Annual
Improvements to PFRSs 2014 - 2016 Cycle) :

The'amendments clarify that.an entity that is a-venture capital organization, or other qualifying
entity, may elect, at initial j_recog‘r;itvion.;,o'n-a_n-invcstrnent-by—investment basis, to measure its
“investments-in associates :;and=joizi’t::f\{ehmreszﬁat fairvalue through:profit or loss.. They also clarify
that@iF an entity that is'not'itself aiinhvestment entity has an-nterest in‘an associate or joint

venture that is aninvestment entity, the entity may, when applying the equity method; elect to

retair the fair value measurement applied‘byjthat"investment entity associate or joint venture to }
the investment entity. associate’s or joint venture’s interests in‘subsidiaries, This election is made
separately for each {nvestment entity associate or joint:venture, at the later of the date on which

(a) the investment entity:associate’or joint venture is initially recognized; (b) the.associate or joint
ventyre becomes an investtuent .ej_n_'t'ﬂiltyj'vandf(q)..the:investment'entity, associate or joint venture first
becomes a parent. vThé'.‘éirh'éridrh'eﬁt's-"s’h’oiildfibe’app}iéd retrospectively, with earlier application -
permitted. ST s ' S

-

[N

The gmendments are“’not,app'licable to the Company since the Company does not have investment

in associate-or joint venture. .
Amehdments to PAS 40; Investmient Property; T vansfers of Investment Properly

-The.amendments clarify.when .ar}';'ent'it,y.,Shbuldvtransfe_rfpr'opért‘y,‘inc‘luding property under
construction or development int ;-orout ofin _‘leﬂstrﬁerit,propei'ty. The amendments state that a
change in use occurs Qwhen%th’é‘épropeftyfrnéet‘s;ior'ceasesto"méet, the definition of inyestment
property-and there is‘evidence of the.change in-use. A mere change in management’s intentions
for the use of a propért:yfdéééﬁ}_nci)f;pr!ovidé::e'vidence ofa change-in use. The amendments should -
be ajﬁplied prospectively:to changes in use'that oceur on or-after the beginning of the annual
. reporting periodin which?gthé}e’ﬁtity}";ﬁrsf"appiiés: fhie ‘amendments. Retrospective application is

only permitted if this-is possible 'WithOut.:th'e{.usesdf hindsight.
- The amendments are not éXpeéte,d,to have any impaétvonvthe Company’s financial statements.

Philippine Interpretation':Intemaﬁi__onal Financial Reporting Interpretations Committee (IFRIC) 22, 1

Foreign Currency T) wansactions and Advance Consideration

The interpretation clarifies that, inyde‘termining;the spot exchange rate to use on initial reco ghition ,

of the related asset, expense or incomie (or part of it) on-the derecognition.of a non-monetary sset

or non-monetary 1iabi1ityfirelatingito"édvqﬁce»consider.ation, the date of the transaction isthe date  J
monetary liability arising

on which an entity iriitial_ly_ﬂrecogni'z_es’-»thc..nonm_onetary;asset.’or non-

from the advance consideration, “If there are multiple payments.or receipts in advance, then the

entity must determine-a date of the transactions for each payment.or receipt of advance -
consideration. Entities may apply the amendments on a fully retrospective basis. Alternatively,
an entity may apply the interpretation prospectively to all assets, expenses and income in its
scope that are initially recognized on or after the beginning of the reporting period in which the .
entity first applies the-interpretation or the beginning of & prior reporting period presented s

: comgarative information‘inthe financial statements of the repotting period in ‘which the entity

firstlapplies the interpretation.

" This|interpretation is not-expected to have any impact on the Company’s financial statements.
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Ejj’ectivé beginning on or after January 1, 2019
. Ame::ndments to PFRS 39,:Prepd)zméhz‘. Features with Negative Compensation

‘Theigmendments to PERS 9 allowdebt instruments with negative compensation prepaymen%
 features to be measured at'amortized cost or fair value through other. comprehensive income. An

entity shall apply these'amendments.for annual 'r'epor’cing»,periovds-beginning on or after January 1,

2019} Barlier application is permitted.

The}3 mendments::are:?ﬁOt;;ﬁapﬁlicablé;.to the ;;Cbmpény'sinceﬂthe Company has no debt instruments -
‘with negative compénsation prepayment features.- - - : R

" PFRE 16, :Leases

recognition, measurement, presentation and disclosure of

leases-and requires lessees to account for all leases under.a single on-balance sheet model similar
-to the accounting-for ﬁhanc’e'}lc‘asessundelf‘PA'S-'17, Leases. The standard includes two
reco gnition”'exemptiqns’ forlessees— ‘leasés_;pf;," low-value? assets‘(e.g., Pers onal computers) and
shortiterm-leases (i.e, leases with alease term of 12 ionths.or less). ‘At the commencement date
- of a'lease, a lessee will recognize a liability to'make lease payments (i.e., the lease liability) and
3 derlying asset during the lease term (i.e., the right-of- ,

an asset representing the right touse the un
‘use asset). Lessees will be'required to sep_ar_qtely're‘cognizejthe" interest expense on the lease

liability and the depreciatibn“_exp‘ché;_e on the right-of-use asset.

I»PFRiE 16 sets: out_the:ijrinci_f)les forithe

Lessees will bealso required to remeasure:the lease Hability upon the occurrence of certain events
. (e.g.{a change inthe'leas: ferm, a change in future lease payments resulting from a change in an
index or rate used-to-deterts ne those 'p,ay_'m_@nté').;’Thel‘lessée“willz:generally recognize the-amount
-of the remeasurement of the lease liability s an adjustment to the right-of-use asset.

Lessor accounting under PFRS 16 is substantially unchanged from today’s accounting under
PAS[17. Lessors will continue to classify all leases using the same classification principle as in
PAS|17 and _distinguishibefiween‘two"types'offleases: operating and finance leases. )

“PFRS 16 also rec':l'fuirtf;svj‘le's,é'éé's.’:ﬁg;ifj.iessox;é to inake fnorevextensive-disclosures than under PAS 17.

.Early applicaﬁmr -iis-ﬁ;si-r'ﬁ:ivtﬁ,téd;bg{;_nc}t:beféie_;;aﬂ“.eﬁtityvvapplies PERS 15. A lessee can choose to
apply the standard using either-a'full retrospective or a modified retrospective approach.. The
staridard’s transition provisions permit certain reliefs.

This [standard is not lexpected"to have any im?act on the Company’s financial statements.

. Ame ndments to PAS:28; lLan-fe){m Interests in Associates.and Joint Ventures

The amendments to PA-S"2'8,'_1clar_;ify_;that:entitie_sshould account for long-term interests inan
associate orjoint venture:to whichthe equity method is not applied using PFRS 9. An entity shall
apply these amendments for annual reporting periods beginning on or after January 1,2019.
Earﬁ'er application is permitted. :

The smendments are not expected o have any impact on the Company’s financial statements.
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. .Phih; pine Interp1 etatxon IFRIC 23, Uncerz‘aznty over Income Tax Treatmenis

The interpretation addresses the accountmg for income taxes when tax treatments involve
uncertainty- that affects the application of PAS 12 and does notapply to taxes or levies outside tiqe
* scope of PAS12, nor: doesit; specifically 1nclude requuements relatmg to interest and penalties,

assocxated thh uncertaln tax treatments

,Thepqterpretatlon spemﬁcally addresses the following:
‘Whetheran entity: eon31ders uncertain fax: {reatments separately
Thhe assumptions an’ entity: ‘makes about the‘examination of tax treatments by taxation

apthorities
‘w  How-an entity determines taxable proﬁt (tax loss), tax bases, unused tax losses, unused tax

|
credxts and tax rates. 3
- 'How an entity consxders changes in. facts and clrcumstances

An entlty must determme whether to consider each uncertain tax treatment separately. or to gether
w1th 1era ‘tax treatments The approach ‘that better predicts the resolution

of tl;e uncertainty should be followed

: Thef-(lompany' is eurre’ntly'assessmg the impact of adopting this interpretation. :

Deferred effectivity

. Amendments to PFRS 10: and PAS 28 Sale or. Contrzbutzon of Assets between an Investor and its
Assoc iate or Joint: Venture

»'The\amendments address the oonﬂxct between PERS 10 and PAS 28 in dealing with the loss of
lofa sub51d1ary5that-1s soldor. contributed to-an associate or joint venture. The

afull: gam or loss is recognized when a transfer to an- associate or joint
\PERS3; Business-Combinations. Any gait or Toss
3 at -d ”es not constltute a busmess, however is

~-contrp
amendments clarify th
ventlJre involvesiabu
'resulﬁmg from:thesa
. recoTuzed only: to”th e

P

¢ On January 13, 2016 the Fina 0131 Reportmg Standards Councﬂ deferred the ongmal effectlve

: date fJanuary-1, 2016 of es 1d:9a1nendme11ts ‘untilthe International Accounting Standards
Board (IASB) completes its: broader review of:the research project on equity accounting that may
result in the simplification of accounting for such transactions and of other aspects of accounting

for associates and joint ventures.

. 4. :Summary of Significant Accounting Policies

Current versus Noncurrent Classification
The Company presents assets and liabilities
[ urrent/noncurrent clasmﬁcatlon

in statement of financial position based on

An-asset as current when it is:

E Expeeted to be’ reahzed orintended to be sold or consumed:in normal operating cycle;

» Held|primarily: for the purpose of trading; .
LI Expe.ted to be realized: w1thm ‘twelve months after the reporting period; or
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Cash and cash equivalent uniess restricted from being exchanged or used to settlea iiability-for at
least twelve months after the reporting period. )

A liability is current when:

“Deferred: tax assets:and -Iiaﬁilitiqu_._ar

It is expected-to be seftled:in normal operating cycle;

It is hield primarily for the'purpose.of trading; ~ - o

Itis .dlue to be;settled_»within-%-twelye:mon'thé afterthe reporting period; or
There-is‘no'uncon‘ditioh‘él right to:defer the settlement of the liability for at least twelve months

after the reporting period.: N

The Company classifies all c')fthfé""‘:éé'sct‘s and lié}‘b’ilit_i es as noncurrent. -

) sified as noncurrent. -

.Cash and{Cash Equi.valenfé

"Cash inclides cash o han‘dar'ld}i'ri?beiql_;s'. Cash'equivalents.are short-terny, highly liquid ip\;estments
that are readily convertible'toknown amounts of cash with original maturities of thre

e months orless

from dates of placement and ‘are subject to-an insignificant risk of change in value.

“Fair Value Measurement " e T

, i

Fair valué is the price that would be receiv

=trans actib ' : l
‘based on
either:

"

The principal or '»the»»most'ia_dyaﬁtagegus market muét.’b'e@ccessiblé to the Company.

be recei ‘ed'_;t(‘)_.sé‘l_l*an agset.or paid to transfer a liability in an orderly
n between market participants t:the measurement date.The fair value measurement is
the presumption that the transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place

In the principal markét_vfo'r‘th_e:,-asset.or liability; or ',
In the absence-ofa principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or liability.

\

‘The fairi\/ alue of an asset or é-=1_iébi1ity is :meagured_using’ the assumptions that market participants-

would use when pri
economic interest.’

A fair value measure_rhént’@f;ﬁif.‘_rvlo“n'-f'ﬁ;lbgncialtasset takes int
_generate economic.benefitsh ‘using it
“market IjTrti‘cipdnti’that wouldiuse theras
“The Company uses V,aluatioﬁ-f-'{cﬁ(‘:h'nfi_qtié.s;‘f:hat are appro

. sufﬁcieﬁti data are-availal  m )
~and miniTizingithe use of unobservable-inputs.

‘Assets
E ’statemet:n\s are categorized within the fair value hierarchy;:

“level inpt

W
&

icing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants act in their best

: s into-accounta market participant’s ability to

asset in-its ‘highestand best use or by selling it to another
et’in its-highest-and best use.- ' )

4

priate in the circumstances and for which

ble to measure:fair value; maximizing the use of relevant observable inputs

1d ligbilities for which fair value:is measured or disclosed.inthe Company’s financial

: - viserchive described as follows, based onthe lowest
tthat is significant to'the fair value measurement as awhole: : . '

1 - Quoted.(unadjusted) market prices in-active markets for identical assets or *
liabilities ‘
Level 2 - Valuation techniques for which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair ¢
value measurement is directly or indirectly observable '

Levell3 - Valuation techniques-for:-which the lowest level input that is significant to the fair

value measurement is unobservable

Level




7 financial|assets-at £

_g- . ' .

‘For asse:ts and Jiabilities f;hﬁféfe :'r'pcozgnized_"inﬁthe financial statements on a recurring basis, the. -
- Company|determines-wheth sfers’have occutred bet iecnilevels in the hierarchy by reagsessing -
ihe lowest lovel input that is significant to the fair value measurement as:a "

»categofijzitibn(baséd:‘_pn‘ the lowest lev:
‘whole) at/the-end of eachireporting date.

The Company determines -:t_héj‘p_oii'_cies;gnd procedures for both recurring and non-recurring fair value
: _measureigents. ‘At each reporting date;the ‘management analyzes the movements in the values of
“assets and liabilities whichiare require to'be remeasured or reassessed as per the Company’s,
‘accounting policies. “For thi alysis he_;magagbinentliyér:iﬁe‘é"the-.:major inputs applied in:the lategt
valuation| . information in the valuation computation to.contracts and other relevant.

n'by agreeing the
~documents.

es, the Company has determined classes of assets and liabilities

For the purpose of fair v@alue‘ disclosur
cs and-risks of the asset.or liability and the level of the fair

on the basis of the nature, characteristi

value hierarchy. !
Details &5 to how the fair value of assets and liabilities are measured are provided in Note 15.

Financial Instruments . _ . \

A financial instrument is any-contract that gives rise to a financial asset of one entity and a financial " j

liability:or equity',instrume“nt"fo'ano:thér"_entity.

' Financigl Assets
.,.,Initz'al;@e cognition and.Measurement.. "Einanci‘a_w_._-l :.A‘Séets_:ar,e c_lg;s;iﬁed,:.at,initial recognition, as-
at fai rofit-or ss (FVPL);loans'and recei.vab‘les,;held-to'—ma_tugity -
orsale’ (AES) 1a"1,:ais_'s{gts',-f;.orae}s}fderviva'tives.designate_d;} as hedging -
All financial assets are reco gnized initially-at fair

~ i(HTM) investments, available AFS)
.;*:instnurril_fe.nts:-in.e@n_;{:cffg?pt propriate:; All financial assets : _ '
- value plus, in the case:of financ ] assetsinot fecorded ‘at FVPL; transaction costs that are attributable

“'to the acquisition of the ﬁnan01!a_1"f'as‘s_etl '

Purchaégs or:sales of financial assets th f'réé';iliré_fdélivéty of }gs__se_tswithin a time frame established by .,: .
.,{:'_régulatfon;0r-=’C0hyeﬁtio cgular way trade Y:arerecognized on the trade date,-
 puL _gha's"e:;orgsgll‘théi"asset.' oo

e, theéfcfate'that"fche{co 11p3

ass FVPL,HIM investments and derivatives des ighated-as

- The Company has rio finan ialiassets atik iy _
hedging instruments in an‘effective hedge as at December 31,2017 and 2016. K

f

Subsequent Measurement. The ‘SQbS@guenf measurement of the financial assets depends on their

. classification as described below:
- The Company’s financial assets-are under the loans and receivables and AFS financial assets

- classification. -

Loans and Receivables. Loans and recejvables are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or

' determir;able-payments.that»are not quoted in an active market. After initial measurement, such

financial assets are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate (EIR)
method, [less impairment.” Amortized cost -is-.pa]culated'by taking into account any discount or

. premiun} on acquisition and fees orcosts that are’an integral part of the EIR. The EIR amortization

" and the losses arising from impairment are recognized in statement of comprehensive income.

The Company’s cash and cash equivalents, and accounts receivable are included under this category.




9.

S financial asset pertains to debt securities. Debt securities in
d to be held for-an indefinite period of time and that.may be
r in response to changes in‘the market conditions. :

AFS Investments. The Company’s AF
this category are those that are'intende
sold in response to needs for liquidity o

After initial measurement, AFS financial assets are subse_a_quently‘measured at fair value with

d gains or losses recognized in other comprehensive.income (OCI) and credited to the AFS
t'is:derecognized, at which time; the cumulative gain or loss is recogniged
he investment.is ‘détermined to'be impaired, when the cumulative loss
to the statement of profit-or loss in finance costs. Interest earned
the EIR method.

unrealize
“Teserve. iihtil_ the investment
_in other:i'perating.income;{fo ‘thed
is reclassifiedfror the AES reserve:

* whilst holding AFS financial assets is reported as.interest income using

a part of a financial asset or part of a group of -

Derecognition. A financial asset (or, where applicable,
d from the statement of financial .

. similar financial assets) is'primarily. derecognized-(i.e., remove
position)when:- e

~

. ThQIlights’ito,reccviye'.i[_ sh flows from the asset have expired; or ‘
-» - The Company has transferred.i s rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has assumed an
obligation to-pay the rece id cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a

‘pass-through’ arrangement andeither () the.Company has transferred substantially all the risks

he asset; ; s neither transferred nor retained substantially all

i__t':ﬁ_as;i_:ranéfér‘red control of the asset.

and fewards-of the asset;;or b) the Corpany ha

thex sks-and rewards of theassety

rights.to receive:cash flows from an asset or:-has entered intoa’
“and fo'what extentit has retained the-risks and rewardsof <

er transferred nor retained:substantially all of the risks and rewards of

‘of f.th:e’as,s'et,‘“fthe;dempany continues to recognize the transferred - ,*

case; the Company also recognizes an’

ed liability are measured on a basis that

-~ 'When'th
pass-thrc
- ownersh _ ,
the asset nor transferred control
 asset toithe extent of its continuing involvement. In that.
. associa't:éld ligbility. The transferred asset and the associat
reflects;the rights and obligations that the Company has retained.

form of a guarantee over the transferred asset is measured at

ContinuiFlg involVemcnt;that-:fiaké‘s;'ther
»and the maximum amount of consideration that '?

“-the lower of the.ori ginal carrying amount of the asset
the Company could be required to repay.

Impairm‘Fnt of Financial Assets.. T he Company assesses, at each reporting date, whether there is

" objective evidence that a financial asset or a group of financial assets is impaired. An impairment
“exists if pne or more evenfsthat has occurred since the initial recognition of the asset (an incurred

~ “loss event’), has an.impact on:the estimated future-cash flows-of the financial asset or the group of
- financial assets that can be: 905 : ‘

: ¢ reliably ‘estimated. Bvidence of impairment may include indications that

 the debtors or a-group of debtors is experiencing significant financial difficulty, default or :

- delinquency in interest-or principal payme tts; the probability that they will enter bankruptcy or other
’ ating that there is a measurable decrease in the

' financial reorganization and-obs ervable data‘indic
ears or economic conditions that correlate with
~

estimated future cash-flows, such as changes in‘arr
defaults, 3

Financial Assets Carvied at Amortized Cost.. For financial assets carried at amortized cost, the

Company 'first«asse’séeszizvhcthér;i_mpairfneﬁt,gXists individually-for financial assets that are

. individually.si gniﬁcant;;-,o'r.;cofllectiyél)ifor”’fﬁnancialrassetsrthat' are not individually significant. If the.
. Companly determines that}no"'nofb'jéctiVefeviden"ce- of impairment exists for an individually assessed

. financial asset, whethier significant or not, it includes the asset in a group of financial assets with

' similaricredit risk characteristics and collectively assesses them for impairment. Assets that are
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“individually assessed for impairment.and for which an impairment loss is, or continues to be,
‘recognized are not included in'a collective assessment ofimpairment.-

“The amoynt of any .;i'rxipaijrrhgif}t{lo'S"_ "dgﬁtiﬁeds'}is' "nieasﬁféd};as she difference between the asset’s .
1% festimated future ‘cashflows (excluding future expected’

carrying’ mount and the present’ nated :
.credit"l'ds_Fes.cthat:‘havé.f;n’ot'yet:fbeéncmci;"rr,ed).’-T'h'el,present value of the estimated future cashflows is -

.discounted at the financial asset’s original EIR.
rjing amount of

*The carty the asset is reduced through the use of an allowance account and the loss is
recognized in‘the:statemen rehgn'Sive‘;iixjcdme;}.:Interést'"income continues to be accrued-on

“the reduced carrying amount sing'thé rate of interest used to discount the future cash-flows for the -

! %«tpurp'osé;lj%ﬁmeasuxﬁing@th' irtrient 1oss.” ai}'s-;\\=fogcther;:w_ith'jthe-:a_"ssociated'a'llowanc‘e-.are.Written

there is no realistic:prospect of future técovery and all collateral has been realized-or has

- Zoff when
* been transferred:to the Company.: If;in-a subsequent year, the:amount of the estimated impairment,”
' fter the impairment was recognized, the’
_previously recognized impairment loss is'increased or reduced by adjusting the allowance
“account: |If a write-off is later recovered, the recovery is credited to other income in the statement of
comprehjnsive. income. - S ‘ ‘

loss incff‘;asesl.orld‘ecreases‘*bécaus,e'-of'.a'riz-eifexit‘,occijrriﬁ‘g'-a

AFS Investments. For.AES ﬁn'ar}:ciall:a'ss'ets, the Company assesses at each reporting date whether
there is objective evidence that'an sfvestment of a group-of investments is impaired.

“In the case-of debt instruments classified as AFS, the impairment is assessed based on the same
criteria as financial assets carried:at amortized cost,” However, the-amount recorded for impairmext is
the cumulative loss measured.as the difference between the amortized cost and the current fair value,
» less anyl’]:npairment.’loss- on:that investment previously recognized in profit or loss.

_Future interest income continue 0’be_;:qc_cr,_ue‘:d{ibas‘e‘dpn:ihc‘zreduced:,carrying amount of the asset,
 “using the rate of interest-use to'discount the future:cash flows for the purpose of measuring the:
-~ ~impairment loss. “The'interestis recorded as part-of interest income. I, in a subsequent year, the fair
- valueof debtinstrumentincreases andthe increase can be objectively related to an event:occurring
after thé impairment loss was recoghiized iri profit or loss, the impairment loss is reversed through
- profit or loss. e ‘

* Financigl Liabilities

+ Initial Recognition andlMedS: em‘)ein't' Flinanbiail }vlviabili.ties‘axje ‘claé.siﬁed,-- at initial recognition, as
“financial 1iabi'litigs"aﬁifairsydl_g > through ‘profit.or loss; lqan_s,_and"borrowings, payables, oras
‘derivatives designated as-hedging instruments in an effective hedge, as appropriate.

~ All financial '=liabilitiés _arc.,rec}'qgri’i;égl:‘inifialiy at fair value and, in the case of loans and borrowings
. and payables; net ofidirectly;gttributabie"trans action costs.
4 The'Coﬁtpany’.s 'ac‘counts:»jﬁéy%bkl_e;and’bthe'i-.léztih'ent liabilities (excluding deferred output VAT) .anci
= due to shareholders are included under this category.

Subsequent Measurement. The subsequent measurement of financial liabilities depends on their

classification as described below.

asured at amortized cost using the

Payables. After initial recognition, Lpay.ab‘les..are‘.subsequently me
n the liabilities are derecoguized as_ -

EIR method. Gains.and Josses are recognized in profit or loss whe
well as:.t'Trough the EIR amortization process.

\
I :
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: Amdrtized cost is calculated by takmg into account any d:scount or.premium on acqmsztxon and fees
“or costs: t at are an mtegral part of" the EIR. The EIR amomzatxon isincluded as interest expense in .
.

" the state pent of comprehenswe income.

“Derecognition. A ﬁnan<:1a1 hab1I1ty is derecogmzed when the obhgatlon under the liability is
. discharged or-cancelled or: oxpires.” ~“When an-existing financial liability is replaced by another from
the sam:Fender on substantially d1fferent terms or the terms of an existing liability are substantially
modified]such an exchang: dificatiotiis treated as the’ derecogmtxon of the original liability:and -

“the recogimtlon of anew’ hablhty' The: dlfference in therespective carrying amounts is recognized in’
the statelient of profit.or loss: :

H

Offsetting of Financial Instr uments

Financiallassetsand financial liabilities are offset. and the net amount is reported in the statement gf
- financia} | osition if there is:a-currently . enforceable- legal right to offsetthe recognized amounts and
 there is an intention to. settle on‘anet’b basis, o torrealize; the assets and settle the liabilities
sumultan lousiy “The: Company ssesses: that it hasia currenﬂy ‘enforceable right of offset if the right is
£ d-ist nforceabledn the: normal course of business, event of

'iVency..or"'.b:aﬁkrupt'é}?Sf the Company.and all of the counterparties.

N

lEgui:fy .

Capital LS;tock Capltal stock
~-directly/attributable to the'isst anc
"net ofta A S

easured atp rvalue: for all shares issued:" Incremental. costs. incurred
Few: shares are shown in. equlty as a deduction from proceeds, -

':'zRetaine_‘d_ Earnings;' »."Rét’aki:e_' t}gi::ngazifgepre'séht'thé. Coﬁxpaiiy’s accumulated earnings, netof

. dividenél “deélared.

’ffv-Dividends The Company' "eco" 1izes. ;"habihty to make ‘cash: dlStl’lbuUOD to its equity holders when -

the distribution is.::auth nis no 1onger at,,the discretion of the Company.- As pcr'

“the corparate laws n t ; rized when it is approved by the BOD. A~

' ’,correspondlng amou ¢ equity. Dividends for the year that are approéed
an event after the reporting date

= Revenue o
- Revenuelis recogmzed to the extent that itis probable that the economic benefits will flow to the

Compan) and the revenue can: ‘be reliably measured, regardless of when payment is received.
~Revenuelis measured: at the fair value'of the consideration: received or receivable, taking into account
contractually defined terms of: payment and-excluding. taxes orduty. The Company assesses its
- TEVENnue, arrangements agamst specn‘.ic crxtella i order to’ determme if-t.is acting as prmmpal or agent

The: Co jpany has’ concluded that itids: actmg asa prmmpal 1n all its revenue arrangements. \

. The foliowung specxﬁc recogmt:on criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized:

Interestiincome. Revenue IS recognized as the 1nterest accrues, taking into account the effective yield
on the asFet
F ces. Revenue is recognized upon. conversion of PDRs to-common shares.

[N

Exercise

EBx ense
_Expenses presented as. “Operatmg expenses
recognized. as incurred. :

» qocount in the statement of comprehensive income are

—



: _3_:'pr0ﬁt.’orif}10sé:fngng’gémént
Csituations| in'which applica

. '-Defe_rrec;{ TaxDeferred =’§ax'is' p‘r&ided
* sreporting date'between the ta

- _reporting|purposes:at:the reportin
“ "ijefér;edz-ta}\_;;ass'e__tg;;épé‘ recogn

/@XCesSs: ri_r%nim_umj corpora
“operating|loss carryover
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Taxes b

Current:Income Tax. Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current period are measured at
-the amount expected to be recov from or-paidto the taxation authorities. The tax rates and.tax
“laws used to compute the amo those thatare enacted or:substantially enacted at reporting date.

‘Current income fca)‘(-%rglating?to nized directly-in eqﬁify'--is‘ré;ognized in equity and'not in -

Iy evaluates ‘np’o‘sifgi'oﬁ's':f'ﬁakcn.=;iri-ijthe'tax returns-with respect to
gulations-are subject to-interpretation-and establishes provisjons

where appropriate.

'us_ipg:the liability “mejch'odﬂon all:temporary differences at.

ts! ‘liabilities and their carrying amounts for financial .

deductible tersiporary differences; carryforward benefits of
(MCIT) over regular,corporate income tax (RCIT) ‘and net.

(NOLCO), to the extent that it is probable that taxable income will be .
fits of excess -

‘available against:which the:deductible temporary differences, and the carryforward bene

|
-

MCIT over RCIT and NOLCO can be utilized except: = . ;

<& Wher the;dc;fer_,r'evéi ta‘x}ass'e, filat{rig_IQ the.ds duchiblg temporary difference arises from the initial

=The carry’m‘g amount:of defer
-extent that it is-no:longer probabl
_ the deferred income tax asset ‘
"at each reporting date.and are recognized to £

recognition of an‘asset: ransaction that is not'a business combination and, at the
“time 0f the transaction,;affects ne er‘thie accounting income nor taxable profit or loss; and
= Inrespect ofdeductible temporary diffcrences associated withdnvestments in subsidiaries and

associates and'i’ritereétsmjdint”arr,é,_ngemeri‘té,ﬂdeferred income tax assets are recognized only to

the extent that'it is pr_obab'le',tlwt'fthe_‘-télnp,qra_ry_ differences, will reverse in the foreseeable future

andtaxable income ‘wil'l'b_é:__as?ailableg;against.whiiph/ the temporary-differences can be utilized.

tax assets is reviewed at each reporting date and reduced to the. y
et ficient taxable profi “will be available to allow all or part of.
be-utilized. Unrecognized deferred income tax asscts are reassessed
he extent that it has become probable that future taxable

~profit will allow the deferred income tax assets to be recovered.

+ When the deferred Incom

"= In respect of taxable:temp

-+ Deferred ax'assqts".and»l‘iggbizl"';éé are
. ,brealizédjor‘the_Eigb‘ility‘;is's’sett based-on’
- --"'substanti*d‘y- enacted at the reporting date.

“Income .‘cjl

Deferred fax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except:
i Vbility':ariseé"_“frOmf.thejini_tial recognition of goodwill or an asset . .
t 2 business'combination and; at the time of the fransaction, -
rofit nor taxable profitor Joss; and o

orary ifferences associated with'investments in subsidiaries, associates
and interests in jointventures, wh n the timing of the reversal of the temporary differences can be
controlled and'it is probable that the temporary differences will not reverse in the foreseeable

future.

or liability in‘a-transac
- affects neither-the acco

: @asu}feQ-;afp‘:Ihe tax rates gpp‘licéb_le;to the year when. the asset is

n tax‘rates.and tax laws that have been to be enagted or

ffsetifa legally enforceable right exists to offset current tax ¢ .

| o foaas
Deferred tax assets and liabilities are.0
assets against current tax liabilities and the defetred taxes relate to the same taxable entity and the

same taxition authority.

x relating to OCI is recognized in OCT section of the statements of comprehensive income.
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: Value-added Tax (VAT). Rev«enues,—pxpenses‘, and assets are recognized net of the amount of VAT, if ~
-applicable. S ‘ : ’ -

| o'i%.‘:sgrvic'e.s.._(ohtput"VAT)ﬁ:é_)‘vi:ceeds\.V AT passed on -frqrri o

ods or:services (inputV: T), theiexcess is recognized as payable in the statement.of
“financial position. When VAT passe on from purchases of goods-or services (input VAT) exceeds
VAT froth sales'of goods-and/o séi'-\{ices3’i(o.ut§ut-'-VAT)',"f'the'z'eXCess,-,»is.r'eoognized as an asset in the

statement of financial position to-the extent of the recoverable amount. / |

“When VEAT --frbm*s‘ale;sﬂo:ﬁ; g:d"o"
- purchases of goods ot'setvice

-

*The net amount of VAT »re_'cov;:r;alble from, or, payable to, the.,faxation, authority is presented as “Input
VAT or part of “Accounts:payable and other current liabilities” accounts in the statement of .

“financial f)ositio_n, respectively. -

_Earnings per Share (EPS) , :
- Basic EPS amounts are calculated by dividing net income forthe year by the weighted average
" number of ordinary shares ‘outstanding during the year. The Company has no dilutive potential
- common shares outstanding, therefore, basic EPS is the same as diluted EPS. :

- Provisions o v ‘ \
Provisions are recogniz_ed;.when‘v_;th'e Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive) where,

- as a result of a past event, it is probab ¢ that an outflow of assets embodying economic benefits will

“be required to-settle the obligation and a reliable estimate can be.made of the amount of the
obligatic}r!x. 1F the effect of the time value.of money is material, provisions are determined by
discounting the expected future cash flows at.a pre-tax rate that reflects current market assessments of
the time-value of money and,v.whéfe'-ap,propria_pé,‘ the risks specific to the liability. Where discounting

s used,:ﬂ?c increase in the provision’ ue'to‘:th_e;passagev;oftimé;i's recognized as interest expense. <

“Where the Company-expe - vision o be reimbursed, the reimbursement is recognized as &

~separate asset but’only when( the'receipt of.t imbursement is vittually certain.
' Co_ntingéhéies L . ‘
Contingéint"li’abi}lities».arelnot,repégni’zec_i_rin the financial statements. These are disclosed in the notes
“to financlal statements unless th bility‘of an outflow, of resources embodying economic-benefits
.is remote; -Contingent assets are no

. : t recognized in the financial statements but are disclosed in the
.notes toiiﬁan’oialistatemqn: an inflow of economic benefits is probable. :

- Bvents after the ReportingDate* . *+ . ‘ , ,

Post yee;’Len‘d-'-eveht'sf",thatiprqﬁidé‘_édditiohal\vinfdrmatif)n‘;_about the Company’s position at.the -
\reporti’n‘g\ﬁdate (adjusting events) dre teflected.in the financial statements. Post year-end events that/ |
are not adjusting events are disclosed in the notes to financial statements when material.

Summarly of Significant Accounting Judgments, Estimates and Assumptions

“The prep%rationof the--ﬁnanc‘i_al,statemehts in compliance with PERS requires the Company to make !

. vestimates‘,and. assumptions that:affect the reported amounts-of assets, liabilities, income and expenses
and disclosure of contingent assets-and liabilities. Uncertainty about these assumptions and estimates
could restilt in outcomes that requirea material adjustment to the carrying amount of assets or

liabilities| affected in future periods. . }

dare based on historical experience and other factors,

Estimates are continually evaluated an
‘that are believed to be determinable under the circumstances.

including expectations of future events
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The key-estimates and as‘sumpt'i'_ébé -@bngeming the future and-other key sources of estimation
uncertainty at reporting date;that have a significant risk of causing a material adjustment fo the

carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next financial year, are discussed below. The
able when the financial statements

Company based its assumpﬁi_qﬁ_s"a‘r'xld;est,ima‘tes on parameters avail
‘were prej ared;’_Existing,_ci_ré_;i_.rris&aj;ciés:,a_nd'ﬂas_sum'ption's about future developments however, may
‘beyond the control of the Company. .Suchy

changes are reflected in the assumptions when these ocour. ]

-

change dpe.to market changes:or. circumstances. arising

‘Determin z'ngtFa‘ir_.leuer»quFS‘Iﬁvés:'tMént.' ‘fI;_‘h'erC‘(.Jmp’any}hés.no- intention of selling its AFS
_investment inthe near term. It is.being held indefinitely and:may be sold in response o liquidity
requirements or changes in market condition.

_Since thel AFS investment:isnot traded in an ac‘;ivevmar_kgt,‘ the fair value is determined.using

.:appropr?'ats‘»\}ai-u_ai;ior{fjtechn'iqgg, hich is the discounted cash flow methodology. The inputs-tothe
model-are tjakcn;;:fr’omjobégw' i 5. where e

inestablishing fair value:

@

rkefs where possible, but where this is not feasible, a degree of

' judgment is-required ines

“The detefmination of tfie.fair Tijeof the AFStinvestment is discussed in Note 15.

ture cashiflows and the selection of an appropriate
stimation of the amount and timing of
Such estimates are-based on

- Impairment of AFS Investment. The assessment:for impairment of AFS debt instrument requires an
estimation of the presentvalug of the-exps ite ‘ “

. discount ate.sJudgment by managen
future cash-flows:when detetr
~assumptions about'a numb :
“deterioration inthe internal

differ.- Allowance may be based onany -
¢ investment sin ‘acquired.” These internal ratings taje”
eterioration in risk, industry, and the financial health and near-
a5 well as identified structural weaknesses or deterioration in‘cash

into consideration: factors Suc
“term business outlook of the issuer,
flows. o

017, 2016 and 2015, The carrying value of AFS

. There was no provision for impairment loss in2
: 83 million-as at December 31, 2017 and 2016, .

 investment amounted to B20.57 million-and $20
~respectively (see Note 8). - -

. Estimating Realizability of Deferred Income Tax Assets. The Company’s assessment 01 the
recognition of deferred income tax assets on carryforward benefits of NOLCO and excess MCIT 1%
based upon the likely timing and level of forecasted taxable income in the subsequent periods. This )

forecastlis based on the Company’s future expectations on.revenue and expenses.

“The Company did not recqgﬁ' : féffcdi.incém'c,téx assets ambﬁpting to R0.50 millionand =

~ “P0.73 miflion as'at December:31y 017:a1d 201 6; réspectively as management believes that sufficient
~taxable profit will not be;‘ava'ilab_lé‘_,agaihst which the deductible temporary differences can be utilized
. (seeNotg12). o ' o )

On July'30, 2007 and August 21,2007, the Company issued 822,115,000 and 123,317,000 PDRs
“relating t GMA shares, respectively. ‘Total number of issued PDRs is 945,432,000 fora
-;considefqtion of B8.50 pér.;shafevdr £8,036,172,000.

Philippine Deposit Receipts

o

ercise price and subject to certain other

‘Bach PDR grants the holders; upon payment of the ex
; f and delivery of the proceeds of such sale of

conditions, the delivery of .onéfGMA"vs'hare’or' the sale

!
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one GMf}.share. The Cgmﬁapy,tyemains to-be:the registered owner of the GMA shares covered by
the PDRs. The Company also retains:the voting rights over the GMA shares. .

[N

shares of corporations engaged.inmass’
ter than Philippine nationals: The
“be exercised at any time from said

pect of GMA shares received byithe.:
jenses’of the:Company for the current and”
rating expenses-in the preceding year shall be set
¢'succeedingyears. Any amountin exces§ of the -~

operating fund for such period shall:be distributed to

 PDRs were listed S)
~_date. -Any.cash dividends

‘. PDR-holders pro-rata.on:the firs usiness day after such cash dividends-are received by the-
of 0.05 (VAT-inclusive) per share shall be paid by the
cise fees” account in the statement of

22 80 million, 20.51 million and £0.09 million in

~ Upon exercise of .the'P_DRs{;.:é;n;éxeroiée;;price
»’,,PDR_hohiiers. The exercise price is shown as “Exer
comprehensive income. Exercise fees-amounted to

-2017; 2016 and 2015, respectively.

Immediately prior.to-the closing of the PDR:pffering-and additional issuances described above, GMA, !

“to Whi.cff &hez-Complany,'is": afﬁl-iéte"d,7trénsfefféd}59"45",5432',)0‘0 0 GMA shares to the Company, in relation

to whicl the PDRs were-issued.-For as-lon g.as'the:PDRs are not exercised, the shares underlying the
PDRs will continue to be registered in the name of, and owned by the Company, and all rights ' \
pertaining to these shares, including voting rights; shall be exercised by the Company. The .

obligations of the Company to-deliver the GMA shares on exercise of the right contained in the PDRs 1

:are-secured by the P-ie\dgé-’foﬁ Shares i favor of the Pledge-Trustee acting on behalf of each holder of 2

_PDR ove the GMA shares.

i At'any‘{t;ime'jafthjf'the‘-‘_PDR'v"ffél‘-”z ng ,év:QMA";s:haréﬁ"'}deﬂr‘;ﬁﬁ;éy_,;éth‘ié»option and from time to time,
- “deliver Sharesto the Compat exchange for qual mumber of PDRs. The exchange is based on
: '.;,-prevailigg tradéd value: ofG v ‘shares-at the-time-of transaction with the corresponding PDR option *

" price.

s.to receive the cash flows from its investment in
those cash:flows to the PDR holders, net of -
) : The through” test is met because the~ +
..+ -i:Company (a)’has o obli , srsiunless it col! ts equivalent amounts from its- "
" - investment in GMA,( actually prohibited fromi:selling or pledging ifs investment in GMA
& PDR holders for the-obligation to'pay the cash flows, and (c) has an

other than as security to the PD
obligation to remit any cash'fl ows from the invéstment in GMA to the PDR holders without material

delay, | _ R S _

- . GMA and assumes a con igation-to.pa
operating expenses (a:'pass-

As discus sed:fab_cjvg, the, _;Cd‘n:lp'fanyQ retains the right

Underthe “pass-fchrough-’ﬁa’tést; the Company is ._dlgaemed to have transferred substantially the risks-an‘d
entin G he-investment in GMA and the liabilities related to

- rewards of its investment:in GMA, Accordingly, _
the issuance of "che'PDRS‘.‘are.:ﬁnotf'reco gnized by the Company.
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“The folI;o_,wingz-are' :the'-gdet'ails:i,z_;nd?mqv_e_:’men

\ ts of the PDRs ‘and the underlying GMA.shares for the .-
years ended December 31: . T S ' f

PDRs .~ . Number of Shares
ST 017 o o 12016 2017 2016
T P7,097,177,850  B7,193,967,350 - 834,962,100 846,349,100
(533,137,000) - (96,789,500) - (62,722,000) (11,387,000)
T P6,564,040,850 B7,097,177,850 ¢ 772,240,100, 834,962,100

" .Balance af beginning of year -
Exercise?q‘f’PDRs- :
‘Balance at end of yeat -

b

On Marclli 27,2017, the Company’s BOD approved a cash distribution to PDR holders of £0.73 per
share totaling B595.24 million;'in ;rélati"o'n':to'-fd_ividends":déCIaredﬂiby’GMA' to all shareholders of regord

as at A»p'riii 20,2017. These were remitted to the PDR holders on May 16, 2017.

8, 2016, the Companyf‘s‘-BOD.‘approvcd;a cash distribution to PDR holders of #0.40 per '

On April
_share totaling to 3338‘.54-‘njillVic:)r;;f::.in,:;re:l'fva_ftion to-dividends declared by GMA to all shareholders of

record aslat April 25, 2016. These were remitted to the PDR holders on May 17, 2016.

¢ entire amount of the cash.dividends received from
;GMA without deduct 5 20172 xidfiZ_O_1'?;6\fiﬁtojbgt:@dfc'iperating expenses on .
- March 27,2017 and Apri 16, respectively.: Such expenses shall be covered by the interest”
income from-the Company’s:cash.and cash equivalents and AFS investment. .

: ';w-‘The'BOD-;approy.gd; ,_ga:‘res"'olu <

As discugsed in Note-18,:0n Apr115,2018 ; ~th¢.

' : BOD approved a cash distribution to PDR bolders in
relationitp dividends.declared by GMA. = = - . :

7. ’:.Cash"ané CaSl;;,Equ‘iva[géhts,?_—' T

o | 2017 2016 |
Cashjon hand and in banks P2,810,924 P1,540,880 /
* Short-term de_p'osi_ts - Tl .25,994,495 25,347,273

T $18805419 _ P26,888,153

- Cash in banks carn ipte're'?_éﬁj’at';;t':hé:‘?_j“r;és'pvéﬁti\jéfbéékfdepojS’it';ate;ﬁs-.%i;iShoiﬁt:tcrm'deposits are made-for
varying periods of up to tHr',_'é!exllnon%hs-}'dependirégg{onz-‘:thc immediate cash requirements of the
Company, and earn interest at the respective short-term deposit rates.

: -term deposits amounted to #0.79 million,

Interest 'ipcome earned from cash in banks énd'short
-$£0.87 million and £0.92 million in 2017, 2016 and 2015, respectively.

8. :_'Availab;l a—for-SaI’e'Investment

Tn 2014, the Company purchased-at par-a ten-year Union Bank of the Philippines (UBP) Tier Note
with a face value of 221,00 million bearing a fixed interest rate of 5.38% from the Ist fo the 21st
interest pﬁyment-dates:-,and'_an‘i_iite'r_c_st'»rate based on the five year (5Y) PDST-R2 plus 196 basis point
(bps) from the:22nd interest payment date to the last interest payment date. The interest is payable .

.quarterly}l- ‘The maturity date of this noteis on-February 20, 2025. .

‘Interest 1Tcome :eafned '.frémitﬁe UBP Tief‘Noté’ ’_amoun'ted'to £1.13 million in 2017, 2016 and 2015 .
i
|
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The movement iﬁ AFS investmenf isas follows:

2017

2016

Balar_;ce--_a»t beginning of year
Change in fair value o

£20,825,264
(254,763)

B20,805,523
19,741

~P$20,570,501

£20,825,264

Balance at end of year; - -

v:Movem'gcmtQﬁnétunréaiiiz"q 1_015 on AF.S-T,fi-nveSt;rieht is-as fdlloWS:

2017 2016
(@174,736) (®194,477)

 Gaini|(loss) due to.chan
‘jnvestment - o
" Balance aténd ofiyear:

‘ Bala ic‘esa"rjbggin,r_:ingjp AN o
I ir.value of AFS L .
S e - 19,741 .

L (254,763)
T (®174,736)

T @429,499)

9. Accounts Payable and Other Current Liabilities .

2017 2016
65,845 29,643

_ Accounts. payable:

Accriied expenses: . e Sl
Professional and trust:fees'(Note'13)
Others SRR 2
Deferred-output VAT
Dividends payable

342,857
3,702
44,321 \
2,689
P403212

.. 275,000
1,714

81,437

3,049
427,045

5.arg.noninterest- earing and are normally settled within the
represent faudit’ifé‘es;_retainer::fees and miscellaneous expenses. . J

Accounts payableand acgrguggig,é}{pense'S’.iére: noninterest-b

© -next finla.? 1al year. “Accrued expenses

10. Equity

a. Capital Stock A o ' |

<The:l»30mpanyjhas 1 O:;QQO;Eﬁfhéfjié’d;ﬁ-iéSpi’éf:’dfaﬁd outstanding common shares with £10.00 par
value per:share. LT AL PN L -

" The j“ol.ldiiévingqsqmma;gizéx the nfo_r'-rklﬁ’atiﬂo‘ﬁipn;thc} Company’s registration of securities with the
SEClas required bySecurities'Regt ’

ation Code Rule 68, As Amended (2011):

.. Number

of Issued

: Shares

. 945,432,000

Authorized
aw . Number

. Date of SEC:Approval =~ - . of‘Shares™
July 30, 2007 T 945,432,000

Issug/
Offer Price
P8.50

b. Retained Earnings

claration and distribution of cash

On March 30,2015, the BOD approved the.Company’s de
frecord as at December 3 1,2014,

dividends amounting to £0.50 million to all stockholders
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' \On;ApriLvS;ZIZOl,6,:§fthé§B.C)]-3 :ppqui/’ed",thc--"Clompaﬁy?,S»déc,l.a‘ration and distribution of cash
..divid;endsaamc}unti»ngi} £0°60 million to-all'shareholders ofrecord as:at April 29, 20 16.and were

-

¢d:the Compa "d.e‘évla"riaﬁon @nd distribution ¢f:cash
ﬂlli.On';tof;al_l-‘stoCkholders='.df-i’record:as at April 10,2017 and were |
- ¢

OnMa'réht 77 ;2017 oD ap,pfdve‘ dthe Company
- divid nds'amounting to ® ,
paid ?n=-M’ay 9,2017; - 7

On April 5, 20»1,8,;2"the§'B OD&{ap:pr_oved‘»thé»;,_Company;’vs;..declaration. and distribution of cash:

'div]ii.ji'3ﬁdsl"amOLinting‘j:-t65§I ~10.millionto all stockholders of record-as at April 9, 2018 (see
Note/|18). o Cl E :

11. Operating Expenses

) 2017 2016 2015
Professional fees . - - P517,910 P382,857 R475291 N
Listing fees = - - 497,692 - 614,064 576,046
Taxes and licenses = -~ " - - 35,011. 31,509 20,382
Othets =~ § i 59279 34,890 22,694 . -
] 109,892 % 1,063:320 ~ P1,094/413 -

12. Income{Taxes o
; L . Lo . ; . w

- Provisionforfincome tax as: atererits of comprehensive income consists of the

- following:

L o016 2015
T E03% P410,572

E -Final tax:}ic?n.,‘inter?st:ihbom
rCm Lo
‘Benefit from deferred tax.

_MCIT 1,782

P412,354 -

“The reconciliation of th
. +forincome tax-as-shown:nthe:s|

income:tax.c ympute statutory income tax rateto provision
nts of comprehensive income-is summarized as follows:

2017 2016 2015

Provision for-income tax-
computed-at statutory ) .

income fax rate of 30% . B1,082,837 P432,517 P314,264
Income tax effects of: ™ - - :

fovement in unrecognized

| deferred tax assets
Interestincome subjected to
final tax s _
Expired NOLCO and MCIT. .

© (310,544) (226,597) 36306

(191,926) (199,669) (205,285)
- 403,255 267,069
TP580367 . B409;506 P412,354
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Deferred Tax Assets ,
The components of unreoogmzed deferred tax-assets are.as follows:
2017 2016 -
NOLCO - P356,488 658,849 \
‘Unrealized loss on AFS 1nvestment . 128,850 52,421
MCIT , : - e 11,949 : 20,132
il . e grpid e T hees g v ?497 287 P73"1'-402"

-The comy onent of deferred ertammg%to unreahzed 1oss on AFS 1nvestment is related to

equity.
As .at':Dec ember 31,2017, NOLCO and MCIT that can be: olalmed as deduction fro
income and RCIT due, respectwely, are as foilows '

m future taxgble

I NOLCO  MCIT

~Date Pald/Inc'ﬁrred ’ _
‘Decetnber 31,2015 . R633,322 R1,782. «
DecemberBl 2016 E 554,972 - 10,167
L - R1;1:88,294 PI11,949
“The movements in NOLCO and MCIT follow::
- 2017 2016 f
“NOLCO: P . T
Balance at begmmng ofyear ' ‘ $2;196,165 $2,985,377
Addition ' : - 554,972
Application - S ' . (1,007,871) -
Expwamon ‘ ' — (1,344,184)
Balance atend ofyear ** " P1,188,294 £2,196,165
MCI"tf - : . v A :
ﬁalance at begmmng ofyear ch T TR20,132. £9,965
Addmon : o : - 10,167
Apphcatlon : (8,183) -
. Balance at end ofyear e B11,949 $20,132

.1 iy form for Accelera‘uon and Incluswh Act. (TRAIN) was signed
n December:19; and:too effecton’ January 1, 2018, making the new tax law enacted

reporting date Aitho 1 TRAIN;i'changeS' th‘etex1s ing tax law and includes several .
: ‘ay prospectlve ‘basis, the management assessed.that

the f'manclal statement balances as of the reporting

“Republic
-intolaw:
as of the:
“provision :
~the same; w1ll not haye any sxgmﬁcantﬁ impact on
date.

Related Party stclosures

“Parties are cons1dered to be related 1f one: party has the abﬂlty, dxrectly and 1nd1rectly, to oontro} the

other party or.exetcise s1gn1 influence’ over the other party in making financial and operating
decisions|. Parties-are ‘also. oons1dered 1o be related if they-are subject to common control.




' :The. outsts
--'§'pertams to the? por

"_Category i

.Shareholders P RS ,
“Portion:of;roceeds Tetained 2017 P ¥47 271 600 On demand upen Unsecured:

v resultmg from the transactlons ‘

220 -
Terms and Condit 'ct1ons with Related Parties .
~There ha\ g rov1ded ot recovered for-any.: related party receivables or payables

he Company’s financial statements.include the following amounts

and settlements Qccur in’cash:
1th related partles as at December 3L

'Amountf‘/olume . Outstandlng . ‘
a2t Transactlons Payable Tcrms ) Conditions .

-Belo, Gozon, Elma Law Firm- 2017 o

47,271, 600 - exercise of PDRs, .

from theyissuance ofPDRs = 2016 R
) noninterest-bearing

_ ‘,A"‘20'2,'£}10‘ ' "200,000 On demand, noninterest- Unsecured
016 - 6ngsT . 267857 bearing 03

coeunt in: the statements of financial posmon '
rom the issuance. of PDRs retained by the Company

for the tights granted under the’PDRs equivalent to B0.05 per

as the PDR issuerin: COI’lSIdeI‘atIOI’l'.
lated to the issuance of the PDRs.

PDR. Th‘llS amourit will be-used forithe: liquidation. of expenses re
Any excess is to.be remitted to the selli ling. shareholders -

The Company skey management personne] are employed by GMA and no part of their salaries was

',:.fallocated to the Company I . ‘

14"

'..‘..‘_;;;dlrectly from 1ts operation

. quuz ztszsk L1 idi

= Cred

The BOD reviews and approves the Cornpany s obj ectwes and thOles

S“'Ilquldlty 1o meet Qbhgatlons un

- regularly|evaluates other ﬁnancm g instrumerits an

Financia] Risk Management ObJectxves and Pohcles

‘ lude cash and cash equivalents and AFS
ruments is:to. financethe Company’s operations.

such ccounts receivable, accounts payable
VAT){and due to shareholders; whwh anse

~

The mair ’ rlsks arlsmg from the Qmpany s ﬁnanc1a1 statements are as follows:

rom: the .:pose_xbtlxty that the Company may encounter
ts fr an01al instruments.
isk: thatf , e‘falr valne of a financial 1nstrun1ent will

“Liguidity|Risk = -‘ " '
Company has sufficient

The Company’s-0bj ective 1n 11qu1d1ty management isito-ensure that the
der normal and adverse circumstances and is able to take advantage of

investment opportunities as they arise.

The Company ‘manages its liquidity rlsk by using its cash and cash equivalents from operations and

interest income from AFS investment.to meet its short-term liquidity needs. The Company likewise
d arrangements to broaden the Company’s range of

financing sources.
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Interest’ Rat'e Risk

.21 -
The table beiow summaﬂze the ‘maturity proﬁle of the Company s financial assets used for 11qu1d1ty
risk management: purposes’ nd_ _anmal habllmes based on- contractual undiscounted payments as at
December31: ‘
2017
) A . S More than .
On-Demand. . 3:to 12 Months ‘ 1 year Total
Financial Assets R ) ) :
Cash and cash equivalents . : ¥28 805,419 B- e $28,805,419
Accounts receivable ' SR 13 8 262' . - ' - 881,262 .
AFS.investinent . S i 0o ~882,136 19,688,365 20,570,501
] Lo P9y 686 681 T UPB82,136 £19,688,365 “£50,257,182
FinancialTiabilities c o j_ '
Accounts payable and other current ' o '
liabilities* _ - 345,608 - - P- P345,608
Due-to shareholders - AR 8,"659;59“5'11 38,612,008 ’ - 47,271,600
T R T 29,005,203 P38;612; 005 . P 247,617,208
R 2016 :
2 .. Morethen
o : 3 to ]2 Months s 1year - - Total ™
 Financial: ssets :
" Cash-and cash equwalents F—- P 26,888,153
‘Accounts receivable - - - - ' - 555;810
. AFS investment . 879,968 . 19,945,296 20,825,264
i PRTIGER o “P19,945,296 . P48:269,227 -
Financial; Lmbxhtxes '
* Accounts payable and. other current‘ s o . :
o liabilities* . 891, . R -l B R358,891
“Due to sharﬁholders' 495, o 41,748,105% . - 47,371,600
Ele P41:748,105: P P47630,491
.*Excludzngaeferr,ed output:-VAT amounting 1% | respectively. ‘o

_ 'The Company’s. xposu
f,Company s AFS 1nvest

1e:risk.of changcsvvm vx_narket interest rates relates primarily to the
'-falr VaIue interest rate risk. :

'e Interest. Rate stk The Company S AFS ;nvestment earns interest at a fixed rate of 3.38%

“With respect:to credit: r1sk arlsmg from cas
investment; the’ Company
‘maximum exposure of-accounts:

“For cash

Fair ’Valu
“from the-lst tothe 21st. mterest payment dates and a rate based on the 5Y PDST-R2 plus 196 bps
-from the 22nd 1nterest payment ‘date tothe’ last interest payment date. The following table below
demonstrates the.sensitivity fair value changes due to-possible-change in interest rates with all
other varj iables held. constant'(through the nnpact on other comprehensive income). \
| Increase
(Decrease) in. Effect on Equity
. Basis Pomts L T2017 2016
AFS investment 50  (B995,748) (R653,500)
' (50) 157,470 709,352
Credit Risk i .

hI and cash equivalents, accounts receivable and AFS

xposure t credit risk atises from default of the counterparty. “The
T cewdbles and’ AF S mvestment are equal to their carrying amounts.

th ‘maXImum exposure is P28, 30: miilion-and 26,30 million asat

‘and -ca’sh‘.ieqli_iya
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December 31,2017 and 2016;respectively, or the carrying-amount less insured amount by the
Philipping Deposit Insurance Co poration equivalent to the actual cash in bank balance to a maximum
of 20,50 nillion per depositor per, bank. It is the Company’s policy 1o enter into transactions with a
(of creditworthy- arties fo' mitigate any si g’r{iﬁqén‘c;coﬁ&;:entrati_'on of credit risk. The
: . o monitorithe:; anting of credit'and-management of credit
risions, Gessary,.for potential losses on credits -

ateral for its financial assefs. .

- extended{
er‘gliy viewed by man agerpentj';as;-';good o
he counterparties.. No financial assets-wete identified
al.féisSéts:fia;"ia‘tf_'Dégember 31,2017 and 2016, « -

. As atDedember
+by the Company-as past du

#Credit Oualitv offlinanv'o_ialﬂ
“+The credit qualityof financ

s interr'ijl oreditratings:

'th:é“}gompahyk,;u.sing high grédev and.»sta‘ndard} grad§ .

s't':nd‘_c;f;éxpégfed-:b.yz the Company.to default in -

| ounterparty #ho i
“settling its obligations, thu ¢redit risk'exposure: ‘minimal: “This normally includes large prime ¢

" fihancial institutions and related parties.

=:‘..Stvandar_d Grade.” Other financi 1‘-asg;e@sﬁ.‘:ndff_cfzassiﬁ_cld, as high grade are included in this-category.

. '»-‘The»Cqmpany-;claSSiﬁcd-” ,_»:sh--:gqu'lvalen’ts"."('e.xgjudingnv_ﬂqash{_on:hahd), accounts receivable

. and AFS]investment as high'gr de¢ financial assets:as at December31,2017 and 2016. S,
_Capital Management :
. The primary objective of the:
© credit rating and healthy capita
value. | ' lF

Company’s-capital management-is to ensure that it maintains 2 strong
l'ratios in-order: tosupport its business and maximize sharebolder \

and ak "'s*éd':us_,‘tr‘»pentsb-:-tp_.‘ it, in the light of changes in
djustthe capitd tructurg, the Company may adjustthe -
payoff existing debts, refurn capital to shareholders ot issue new

The Company. manages its
. economig conditions. . ta

wdividend ] ayment.to :Shérg 0 ,@?ES»
shares. | B

; ,p.cjli:gi»e.s’- lqr‘ processes for the three years ended .

" No cbanges. were:mad
efDeoemb_éES 1,2017,201

= The Com any%s:';¢épifg_' : _ ’Ehre“(vCompany’S: capital includés the
“total equity; before-othe L ich amounted:to 3 24 million-and - -
‘ '555P1,.2'14rn'i)iion as-at Decembet 31;:2017.an respectively.

“The Com]pény isnot subj e@t’fto,g-é;xrefﬁal_ly :impﬁsed;;é'apifal'.requirements.




15. Fmanc:lal Assets -and’ Llabllmes .

o] ‘estxm ¢ the fa1r value of each ﬁnanczal

- f mstrumer t 'fof W
, .-vlCash and Cash Equw ents.
i excludmsz Deferred.O1
The: carrymg amounts.of'thes

g term maturltles of these: ﬁnanmal] mstruments

». Shareho]ders :
iancia 1nstruments approxxmate thelr fair values due to. the short-

AFS Investment )
‘The estlmated fair: Value
flows. The dfscount ral
secuntxes\ of dlfferent teno
“the counterparty s credxt ratm

s" credit spread which is based on

he fair valuesis under leVel 2-of the fair value hierarchy.
Y

The followmg table below demonstrates the se'n_s"itivity of credit. spread (through the impact on other
; comprehenswe 1ncome) SR '

5 - Effect on Equity
J _. 2017 2016
AFS'investment (B566,250) (B536,113) .
L 586,968 554,042+
2016 2015 .
B1,032,216. P635,193 -
10,000 10,000
P10320 P63

The Company has no:
diluted Eli’S )

17. Note to Statement of Cash Flows
Change m 1ab1hty arxsmg from ﬁnancmg aot1v1ty isas follows

o Deolaranon ol
N - Januaryl 2017 ofdmdends Cash flows used. December 31, 2017

Dividends payable- o FP2,689 - P1,000,000 - (R999,640) £3,049
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. 18. Events a'f’ter.:'thé Re’p()rtiﬁ:g’ft])ét‘é“

“On- Aprll 5 20138, the Company; BOD_ ppxoved a cash d1str1but10n to PDR holders of £0.50 per
“share-iny relat:on to- diwdends declared by GMA-to: all shareholders of record as at April 23, 2018 gnd

willbe pald on May 16, 2018.

 pass:o the entire:amount of the-cash dividends
proved the use,of the: 1nterest
:’for these expenses.

*On:the same «date; ‘thc¥BOD-»app '
e reoexved from

n: heCompany’s VAT returns

The: Company isa VAT-reglstered Company W1th output VAT declaration of 298,895 for the
year-based on the gross. receipts of exercise fees of ?2 490, 790 as included in the “Exercise’ fee”

- account in the statement of comprehenswe mcome

+b. Input VAT o
P441,598

.Balance at] anuary 1; 201 _ ,
Current year’ s domestxc purct 1ases for serv1ces 105,574
Totaliinput VAT - S 547,172
' ,Applled against output: VAT (298,895) -
..Balance at December Fem S U CR24827T -
_ '.,Other'ﬂTa(es and*Llcen > TSR . 1 _
Avlp-other looal and natxonal the'yeat ‘endedDecember 31, 2017 consist of: .
Local taxes and hcense fees 34,511
__.Reglstranon fees® - - 500
! T $35,011




:'.-Wlthholdmg Taxe -
‘ -_‘.Wlthholdmg taxes pald and/o

1thhe[dfor ﬂleyear jéhdgd.ijéperﬁber 31,2017 consist of:

B57,891,880:
11:568- 7
© -PR57;903,448 .

a

ax(assessments and cases pending & before the
any. has'no; ‘other pending tax-cases outside




‘No. 0001 '
; eri14;:2015; vahd untit December 34; 2018
EC orndltatmn No, 0012-FR- 4{Group A),”
No fber 109720456, valid until Novémberg 2018

working world’

udlt ofithe basxc ﬁnanc1é.l-="' a
rrnatxon reqmred to be set forth

!
- ',4_"Belihdé T.;:B,j;i, Hui
* . Partner '
~May 1, 2016 alid1
. - Tax Identification No, 153+ 978 243 v \
, BIR Accredlta‘uon No 08 001998-78- 2015_ .
April 5, 2018‘
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" GMAHOLDINGS, INC.
lement chedul

Schedulef}A ‘Financial A

i D . T Amount shown in. . o

| , B T . " thestatements of - Income received

Name of issuing entity and association of eachissue. financial position and accrued

Cash and?’(_’T«fash.f/»’e'qll‘,'iYE:fl:e_nts’“-f*’s DS : '
_Cashonhand:, © . .
_Castiin bank~ Union Ba

$£2.300 P

25,994,495 780,048

2808624 7667
2,810,924 A667
)

P28,805,419 - EPT89,715 -

: ~:-f::S'ched-q1e‘5B; Amounts' R
ipal Stockbold

" Noncurrent . Decefriber

Décember 31,2017

P @ s N
P

i

"";P._ai;,ties which-are Eii‘m‘ivx}_iate"d: -

R o Dedtetions .
: 7 i Amount i Amount - - : Balance as at
:Additions: | collected ~ - written off Current  Noncurrent December 31, 2017

. Nameand “: - Balance asat
_iesignation - January 1,2017 "

mpany.has no receivable from/payable to related parties which are

sonsolidated s at December 31 220175

ot Applicable: The C

=

Schedule D. Intangible Assets - Other Assets
" Other changes:

) " Charged to cost additions

Beginning - ‘
(deductions) Ending balance

Descriptilon . balance . Additionsat cost’ .. .and expenses

; B\alance agat-

-

| SET e
he:Company-hasno intangible asset as at December 31,2017, ~

i _;Not'prp'),li_C’abl' ,

$20,570,501 PI,131,545

ger; employees; :relatgd‘}),éx‘rties and -



; -,"'zSecurrtres‘

i
i
|
|

SCHEDULE I
. o )
Schedule E. _Longaterm Debt-
| e
1 A Amount showq‘under
Title of issue and type of: i “Current portion , captron “Long-term debt”
obllgatron B debt” in related balance sheet in related balance sheet 4

" g—term debt as. at December 31,2017,

.' Not:Applicalﬁ‘le:‘

» ,-.,.sche;a,ule.‘:l:F:r-.Iri,d;éﬁte dne

‘ 'Balance at
Januaryl 2017

Name of related.party

: m Related Partles)

P

Ba ance-at’

Deeemb_er 31,2017

from al related party as:at December 31 2017

Not Apphcable The Companyhas no ’lon erm 'an

ﬁ ;Name ofi r

[ otal amount . Amount owned by -

:Company for Wthh thxs : aranteed and - person for which the Natulre of.
statement is: ﬁled outstandrng stafement is ﬁled guarantee

securities of other issuers as at -

: "Schedule_,iH'. Capital Stock
3
: Number
sof shares held Directors,
] , ‘byrelated  officers, and
Titlelofissue - .- ~al parties employees Others
Commonstock™.. * S = 10,000 o=
;l"

i
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SFRS) and Toerpretations

ind Presentationiof Financial

,': Stateménts SR

Conceptual Framework Phas AvObjective ‘xjd;qual_ité!;' éiélaf_:acter,is'tips

Phlllppine-Flnanc1‘ Re _>

A PFRS 1 § v Flrst-tlme Adoptv i of] pme Fmancml Reportmg
: (Revised)i;' . "Standards cE
i Amendments to PFRS 1.and.PAS:27: Costof an Investment v

ina Sub31d1ary, Jointly Controlied Entlty of Assocmte :

| Amendments to PFRS 1
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N Revised). —
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* “\PFRS

SCHEDULE 1T
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. v
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" |pFRS9 | Financial Instruments* Not Early Adopted
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5 PFRS,IZ-?‘ +/ Disclosure of Intcrests in Other Entities v
Amendments o PFRS 10, PFRS 12 and PAS 27 Investment’ v
| _|Entitles ; :
¢ |Amendmentst PFRS 10.PERS, 12 end PAS 28 _ | y
1 ; Apply gth ‘nsohdatlon Exceptlon :
v




SCHED\ULE IIJ'
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Not:Early Adopted o
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- 7

| pAS 17

i |Leases
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| PAS 20 f- ,ﬁ_}chounnng{ —

PAS21 |

i
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|PAS 24~

: Revns

| Exception
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B Amendmentst PAS 871 ong‘term Interests TSR IEEERI I , Lo

“| Associates and J omtVenturcs L R Not Early,Ado,pted.v -

e S..ur.}ng‘%ﬂ‘AS-S?C%%P%,9.1?.!?@'»:» . NotBarly Adopisd.

1PAS 29 Financial chortmg in Hypermﬂatlohai'y‘Economies o
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: Instruments.and: Obhgat1ons Ansmg'on Liquidation’
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GMA HOLDINGS, INC.

Unit 5-D Tower One,

TREASURER’S CERTIFICATION

i S "Hm'\’l)‘hEWéérﬁ%-‘
INTENTS, . °

- imjeq e b . \‘ - = o . .
I, FELIPE S. YALONG, of legal age, Filipino and with office address al GIVIZ COTIPRAGT=
EDSA corner Timog, Diliman, Quezon City, after being sworn in accordance with 1ja:w_,_",'
hereby certify that: : B SO

1. T am the Treasurer of GMA Holdings, Inc., a corporation duly organized and existing”
under and by virtue of the laws of the Republic of the Philippines under SEC Certificate = o
of registration CS200602356 with the principal office at Unit 5D Tower One, One
Mckinley Place, New Bonifacio Global City, Fort Bonifacio, Taguig City. e

GFFS”) Compact Dise submitted cnntams

2. The General Form for Financial Statements (*
Statements of the Corporation.

the same basic and material data in the Audited Financial
3. | am executing this certification to attest to the truth of the fjoregding and in compliance -~
with the reportorial requirements of the SEC. ' -

Witness my hand on this % o1 4018 at City of

WBRKAT CITY

SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this o d

affiants exhibited to me his TIN 102-874-052 (Felipe S Valong).
ATTY. VIRGILIG R, BATALLA -

Doc, No. 20w . . _ HOTARY PUBLIC FOR MAKATI CITY
Page No. 93 APPOIITRERT RO, 128
‘Book No. g , ' : ' UMTILUDEZEMBER 31, 2018

0. ed oo , =« ROLL CF/ATTY. HO. 48348

00K 2, |
Series of 2018 MOLE COMPLARCEND. 10-0015333/4-10:2013,

Taguig City 1634 Philip

' GMA HOLDINGS, INC.
1cio, ‘
' 1103 Philippin

One McKinley Place, New Bonifacio Global City, Fort Bonifa

MAILING ADDRESS: GMA Network Center, EDSAcor. Timog Ave., Diliman, Quezor
(632) 982-7777 loc. 8001 Fax (632) 928-5 ’

Telephone No.



GENERAL FORM FOR FINANGIAL STATEMENTS
NAME OF CORPORATION: GMA HOLDINGS, INC:

Controt No.; 8200602356

Form Type:

GFFS {rov 2006)

5D Tower One, One McKinley Placs, New Bonifacio Global City, Taguig City

CURRENT ADDRESS:
FAX NO.:

TEL.NO.: ‘9827777 loc.8001/8889
COMPANY TYPE : ‘Holding Company

If these are based on consolidated financial statements, please so indicate in the capfion.
Table 1. Balance Sheet

psic:

FINANCIAL DATA

T ] 2016

{in Philippine Peso)

A. ASSETS (A1 +A2+A3+A4Y A.5'+" AB+AT+HASHAGHAND)

50,505,459

48,710,825

A4 CurentAssets (A4 1 +A12+A13+ Ad4+A15)

29,934,958

27,885,561

A1 Cash and cash equivalents (A.1.1.1 +A11.2+A 18]

28,805,419

26,688,153 |

A.1.1.4. On hiand

2,700

5000 F

A.1.1.2 In domestic banks/entities

28,802,719

26,883,153

'A4.:4.3.In foreign banksfentities )

A1 Trade and Other Receivables {A.1.2.1 +A1.2.2) '

881,262

555,810

A1.2.4 Due from domestic eniities (A.1.2.1.1 AT 212+A1213 +A1 2.1.4)

881,262

555,810

"A1.2:1.1 Due from customers (trade)

760,075

413,660

A.1.2.4.2 Due from related parties

1213 Others, specify (A.1.2.1.3.1+A.1.2.13.2)

121,187

142,150

A4.21:31 Interest Receivable

121,187

142,150

A1.2.1.32. Others

"A.1.2.14 Allowance for doubtful accounts (negative entry)

A.1.2.2-Due from foreign entities, specify
(A1321+A13.22+41.323+A1.324)

A1.2.2:4

A1.222

Al223

A1.2.2.4 Allowance for doubtiul accounts {negative entry)
A1.3 Inventories (A1.3.t +A1.3.2+A1.3.3 +A134 +A.1;3.5_+.A.1.3.6)

A1.3:1 Raw materials and supplies

A1.3.2-Goods in process (including unfinished goo;ls, growing crops, unfinished

A.1.3:3 Fihished goods

A.1.3.4 Merchandise/Goods.in transit

A1.3.5 Unbilled:Services (in case of service providers)

A1.3.6 Others, speciy (A.1.3.6.1+A.1.3.6:2)
A1364 .

A1362

A4 Financial Assets other than CashiReceivables/Equlty vestments (A t.4.1+ A 42+

AL43 +ALA4AL45+A 140

A.1.4.4 Financial Assets at Fair Value through:Profit or-Loss - issued. by domestic
entities (A.1.4:1.1 FA1A12 +A143 7A4.14 +A,1:4.1.5)

Ad4.41.4  National Government

A144.2  Public Financial Institutions

Af413  Public Non-Financialinstitutions -

A14.1:4 Private Financial Institutions

Ad445  Private Non-Financial Institutions’

A1.4.2 Held o Maturity Investments - issued by-domestic entities
(AJ1421+A142.2+ A14.23+A14.24 +A14.25)

A14:21  National Government

A1.422  Public Financial Institutions

A1423 Public Non-Finangial institutions

AM424  Private Financial Institutions

14 25 Privale Non-Financie nsliulons

NOTE:
and Quarrying, Manufacturing, Electricity, Gas and Water, Construction, Wholesale and

This general form is applicable to companies engaged in Agricuttirce, Fistiery, Forsstry, Mining,
Retail Trade, Transportation, Storage and Communications, Hotels and Restaurants; Real Estate, Community,
aperations. This form is alsc applicabile to-other companies that do not have industry-spacific Special Forms. Special
non-hank financial intermediation acfivities; credit granting, and activities auxitiary to finang

Domestic corperatiens are thosa which ate incorgorated under Philippine Taws or. branche
fhe center of ecanoniic interest or-activity is within thie Ptillippines. On the other hand, foreig

corporations operating abroad.

Finaacial Institutions are corparations principatly engaged in financial intermedialion, facilitaling financial interme;
corporations that are primtarily engaged in the production of markst goods and non-financial services.

Page 1

Social and Personal Services, o

s/subsidiaries of foreign corporations that are licens
n corporations are those that are incorporated abroad, includi

ther forms of production, and general business
1 forms shafl be used by publicly-held compenigs and those engaged in
8l intemediation, which require secondary license from SEC.

24 to do business in the Philippines whera
ng branches of Philipgine

diation, or auxiliary financial services, Non-Financial institutions refer to



GENERAL FORM FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS:
NAME OF CORPORATION: GMA HOLDINGS, INC.

Controf No.: €8200602358
Form Type: GFFS [rev 2006)

CURRENT ADDRESS: 5D Tower One, One McKinle
TEL.NO..  982-7777loc 8001/8882 ] 7 FAXNO

Pll‘ace New Bonifacio Giobal City, Taguig City

COMPANYTYPE:  Holding Company

If these are based on consofidated finaricial statements, please sb indicate in the caption.
Tablé 1. Balance Sheet

PSIC:

FINANCIAL DAT%A

2017 |
(tn Phifippine Pesa)

2070

A1.4.3 Loans and Receivables - issued by ‘domestic entmes
(A1431+A1432+A1433+A1434 521435

A143.9  National Government

A14.32 _Public Financial Institutions

AT433 _ iPublic Non-Finangial nstitutions
A1.434 Private Financial Institutions '

A1436  Private Non-Financial Institutions

AA1.44 Available-for-sale financial assets - issued by. 'domestic entities:
{A1441+A1442+A1443+A1444+A1445\

20,570,501

20,825,264

At44;1  National Gover gment I

A1d44.2 P"IE inapgial ons

Ad443 n-| |n

20,570,501

20,825,264

Alidd44 i Private Financial Insfitutions: t

A;1.44.5 Prwai Ng Enangal Institutions -
} entiti {A1451+A‘I452+A1453+A1454\

. 3
A1451 4 nc S ir ro orlos:
Al45.2  Held-fo matg[m investments

A1453 Loans andRecelvables

A.1.4.5\4 ilable-for-saje financial ass

A48 All ine i market value e enty)
A5 Other:Gurre s e e rial | ms){A151+A152+A153)

248.277

441.598

A:1.5.1 Prepaid Tax Asset

A:1.5.2 InputVat

248,277

441,698 |

A153

7 Fropert, pant s equoment (A2 + AZZ +A23 +A2 A+ A5 A6 +ALTALE)
A2.1 Land

A.2.2 Building and improvements including leasehold |mprovement
A.2.3 Machinery.and equipment (on hand and in transif)

A.2.4 Transportation/motor vehicles automotive equipment Aulos and frucks, and delivery equipment
A.2.5 Others, specify (A2,5.1 “A252+A253+A254+4K255)

"A.2.5.1 Propery, or equipment used for education pu rgoses
A.2.5.2 Construction in.progress :

A253

A254

A255

A.2.6 Appraisal Increase, specify (A2, 6.1+A262+A26. 3\+A 2 8.4)
A26.1

A262

A263

A264

A.2.7 Accumuilated Depregiation ¢ iv )

A2.8 Impaiment Loss or Reversd (if loss. neaative eptry)

AL ngesy gm e [mgm sing the e mmmemod (A3] +'A32+A331

.3. i re nbr ch dl xs/' li
A33Q{MW(A311+A321+A331+A334!

A331

A3.3.2

A333
A3.34

A4 lnvestmentP

A5 Biolgaical Assets

Aﬁ D!ﬁ gbieAsgets (A61+AB2)

/3, 8| ECva(A611+A612+A613+A614) i
611

AB.1.2
AB.1.3

AB.14
AB.2 Others Speci (AB21 +A622 +AB6.23 +AB2M

AB:.2.1

AB.22
AB6.2.3

AB24

A7 Assets Classified as Held for Sal

A8 Assats included in Disposal Grouns Classified as Held forSaIe

Page2




Controf No.; £5200602356
Form Type: __GFFS (ov 2005

GENERAL FORM FOR FINANCIAL. STATEMENTS
NAME OF CORPORATION: GMA HOLDINGS, INC.

CURRENT ADDRESS: 50 Tower One, One McKinley-Place, New Bonifacio.Global City, Taguig City
TEL. NO.: 982-7777 loc 8001/8889 “TFAXNO..
COMPANY TYPE : Holding Company palC: .
if these are based on.consolidated financial statements, please so:indicate in the capftion.
Table 1, Balance Sheet
: 2077 7076
FINANCIAL DA TA in Phiflpgine Peso)
current portion) (A.9,1+A9.2 +A.8.3) - -
tities, specity (A9.1.T+A9.1.2 +A.9.1.3 +A.9.1 A
A9.44 v
AQ4.2
A913 ]
A914 .
0.2 From foreign entities, specify (A.9.2.1 +A9.22 +A9:2.3 +A9.24)
A9:2.1 :
AD22 .
A823
A9.24 ,
.93 Allwance for doubtful accounts. net of current portion (negative enty)
A0 OtherAssets.(A10 1A 10.0+A10.3 +A104+A105) - -
10,1 Deferred charges - net of amortization :
A.10.2 Deferred:income Tax

10.3 Adva iscellangous depos
A.10.4_Others, soegify (A,10.41 +AJ0 4271043 +A1044) -
A:10.4.1 Deferred Tax Agset . i .

A104.2
41043
A104.4 :
0.5 Allgwance ite-down of deferred chardegfpad.accou ive enfrv)
B. LIABILITIES (B.i+B:2*B3+B4+BS) ] : 47.,698.845 47,678,338
| B.1 Current Liabjlities (B1.1-+ Bu1 5 +BA3+B1A+B.1:5+B16+B:17) 47,698,645 47678338
BA1T ing Other Payables to stic Entiti j 47,695.596 47,672,123
B.1.1.1 Loans/Notes Payables . :
B.1.1.2 Trade Pavables : 65,845 964
B.1.1.3 Payables to Related Parties, specify (B.1.1.34+B.41.3.2 + B.1.1.3.3) 47,271,600 47,271,600
8.1.1.3.1 Due to shareholders } 47,271,600 47,271,800
B.1.1.3.2
B.1.133 ‘
B4.1.4 Others, specify (B.1.14.1 +B.1.1.4:2+B.1.1:4:3) 358,151 390,880
B.1.1.4.1 Deferred output VAT . 81,437 44,321
B.1.1.4.2 Accrued Expenses 276,714 346,559
B.1.14.3 : .
B.1.2 Trade and Other Payables to Foreign Entities (specify) (B.1.2.1 +B.1.2.2+B.1.2.3+B.1.2.4)
B.1.2.1 ;
B.1.2.2
B.1.2.3
B.1.24
B 1.3 Provisipns . i i -
B1.4 Financial Liabilities {excluding Trade and Other Payables.and Provisions) -
(B.1.4.1+B.14.2+B.1.43)
B.14.1
B14.2
B.1.4.3
B.144 -
R.1.5 | iabilities for Curcent Tax - 3.52
B.1.7 Others, spedify (If material, state separately; indicate if the item is payable to public/private 3,049 2,689
or financialinon-financial institutions)
B.1.7:1 Dividends declared and not paid-at balance sheet date | 3,049 2,689

B:1 7.2 Acceptances Pavable
B.1.7.3 Liabiliies under Trust Receipts .
8.1.7.4 Portion of Long-term Debt Due within one year
B.1.7.5 Delerred Ingome
B.1.7.6. Any other current fiability in excess of 5% of Total Current Liabilities, specify:
(B;1.7.6.1+B.1.7.82 +BA 763 +B.1.7.64)
81761 .
B.1.7.6.2
B.1.7.63

B.1.7.6.4

Page 3



GENERAL FORM FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS C
NAME OF CORPORATION: GMA HOLDINGS, INC. L

Controf No.: £5200602356
Form Type: GFFS {rev 2008)

CURRENT.ADDRESS: 5D Tower One, One McKmieyﬂ Place New Bonifacio Global City, Taguig City
TEL. NO.: 9827777 loc 8001/8888 FAXNO.:

COMPANY TYPE: Holding Company PalG:
If these are based on.consolidated financial statements, please s0. indicate in the caption.
Table 1 Balance Sheet
2007 2016
F INA NCIAL DA T A {in Philip;!ne Peso)

B.2 Long-term Debt - Non- cur{ent interest-bearing Liabilities (B 24 +B 2.2 +B.2.3+B.2.4 +B.2.5) ] - '
B.2.1 Domestic Public.Finaricial Institutions
B.2.2 Domestic Piiblic Non-Financia! Institutions
B.2.3 Domestic Private Financial institutions
B.2.4 Domestic Private Non-Financial Institutions.

B.2.5 Foreign Financial Institutions

B.3 Indebtedness to Affiliates and Related Parties {Non- Current) . -

B.4 Liabilities Included in the. Disposal Groups Classified as. Held for Sale -

B.5 Other Liabilifies (B.5.1 +B.5.2) -
B.5.4 Deferred.Income Tax 4
B.5.2 Others, specﬂy(BSH+BS22+B523+B524)

B.5.2.1 ‘ L
B.5.2.2
B.5:2.3 0
B.5.2.4 S
C. EQUITY(C3+C4+CS+C6+C7+C8+CQ+C10) L 2,806,814 1,032,487

C.1 Aulhorized Capital Stock {no. of shares, par value and total value show details) 100,000 100,000
(C.1.14C.1.2+0.1.3)

C A1 Common shares | 10,000 shares par vatue of P10 100,000 100,000
C.1.2 Preferred Shares :
C.1.3 Others . ‘

C.2 Subscribed Capital Stock _(no. of shares, par value and total value) (C.2.1 + .22 +C.2.3) 100,000 100,000 |
2.1 Common shares |10,000 shares par value of P10__ 100,000 100,000
C.2.2 Preferred Shares B
C.2.3 Others

C.3 Paid-up Capital Stock{C.3.1+C.3.2) 100,000 100,000
G.3.4 Common shares _[10,000 shares par value of P10 . 100,000 100,000
.3.2 Preferred Shares |

C.4 Additional Paid-in Capiial / Capital in excess of par value / Pa|d in Surplus

C.5 Minority interest - -

C6 Others, specify (C.6.1+C:6.2 +C: 6.3+C.8.4+C.6 5) | (429,499) (174,736
C:6.1 Unrealized loss on avallable for-sale investment I {429,499) {174,736
C6.2
C.6.3
Cb4
c85

C.7 Appraisal Surplus/Revaluation Increment in Proper{y/ReValuatlon Surplus - -

C.8 Retained Eamings (C.8:1 +C.8.2) ) 3,136,313 1,107,223
C.8.1 Unappropriated 3,136,313 1,107,223
C.8.2 Appropriated

.0 Head ! Home Office Account (for Fore!gn Branches only)

C.10 Cost of Stocks Held in Treasury {ne ative entry) - . -
D. TOTAL LIABILITIES AND EQUITY (B +C) 50,505,459 48,710,825

Page 4



Controf No.: C8200802356

Form Type:  GFFS (rev 2006)
GENERAL FORM FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS :
NAME OF CORPORATION: GMA HOLDINGS, INC. | ;
CURRENT ADDRESS: 5D Tower One, One McKm!ey Placé New. Bonhifacio Global City, Taguig City
TEL. NO.: 982.7777 loc 8001/8889 ﬁFAX NO
COMPANYTYPE:  Holding Company ‘ 'i PSIC:
if these are based on consolfdated financial statements; please so md;cate in the caption.
Table 2, lncome Statement
FINANCIAL DATA 017 | 2016 2015
i (In Phifippine Peso)
A, REVENUE /INCOME {A.1 # A.2 + A:3+A4) | ; 4,719,349 2,505,042 2,141,960
A1 Net Sales or Revenue / Receipts.from Operations (manuféciurihg,.mihing,utilities,'tradej 2,800,089 508,348 89,103
services, etc.).(from. Primary Activity) I
A2 Share in the Profitor Loss of Associates and Joint Ventures acdounted for using the -
A30therRevenue(A31+A32+A33+A34+A35) : - - -
A.3.1 Rentalncome from Land and Buildings
A.3:2 Receipts from Sale-of Merchandise {trading) (from Secondary Actlwty)
A3.3 Sale of Real Estate or other Praperty and Equipment }
A.3.4 Royalties, Franchise Fees, Copyrights {books, films; recotds, ait:)
A.3.5 Others, spectfy(ASS‘[+A352+A353+A354+A35.5%~
A356+A357) ) X ;
A.3.5.1 Rentalincoms, Equipment
A3.5.2
A3.53
A354
A355
A3.5.8 ‘
A3.5.7 i
.4 OtherIncome (non-operating) (A4.1 +A4.2 +A43+¥A44) ¢ 1,919,260 1,896,694 2,052,857
A.4.1 Interest Income ‘ 1,919,260 1,096,694 2,052,857

A 4.2 Dividend Income

A4.3 Gain [ {Loss) from selling of Assets, specify

(A431+A432+A433+A434+A435+A436+A43.7)
A43.1 !

Ad432

AA433

A434

244 Gain/(Loss) on Foreign Exchange (A.4.4.1 +A442+A443+A444)
Addl .

Ad42

Ad43

Ad.44

B. COST OF GOODS SOLD (B.1#B.2+B.3)

!
B1 Cosl of Goods Manufactured (B.1.1 +B.1.2+B 1.3 +B.14 +B.1:5).
B.1.1 Direct Material Used ‘ |

B.1.2 Direct Labor

B.1.3 Other Manufacturing Cost / Overhead

B.1.4 Goods in Process, Beginning

B 1.5 Goods in Process, End (negative entry)

B.2: Finished Goods, Beginning

B 3 Finished Goods, End (negative entry) o

C. COST OF SALES(C.1+C.2+C.3) ;

C.1 Purchases

C.2 Merchandise Inventory, Beginning

C.3 Merchandise Inventory, End (negative eft 1try)

D COST OF SERVICES, SPECIFY (D.1#D.2+D.3+D. 4+0.5+Di 6) {

D1 :
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GENERAL FORM FOR FINANCIAL/STATEMENTS
NAME OF CORPORATION:: GMA HOLDINGS, INC.

Control No.: 8200602356
Form Type: . GFFS (rev 2006)

CURRENT ADDRESS: 5D Tower One; One McKinley!

Place, New Bonifacio Global City, Taguig City

TEL. NO.: 982:7777 loc 8001/8889
COMPANY TYPE: ‘ Holding:Company-

FAXNO.:

PSIC:

If these are based on consolidated financial statements; pleasé so.indicate in the caption.

Table 2.

income Statement

FINANCIAL DATA

2017

I

2016
(in Phlllppine Peso)

2015

E.1

E. OTHER DIRECT COSTS, SPECIFY (EA+E2+E3+E4 TE5+E6)

E2

EJ

EA

ES

E.6

F. GROSS PROFIT (A-B+C-D-E)

4,719,349

2,505,042

2,141,960

G. OPERATING EXPENSES (Gi1+G.2+G.3+GA)

1,109,892

1,063,320

1,004,413

G.* Selling or Marketing Expenises

(.2 Administrative Experises

1,109,892

1,063,320

1,094,413

(.3 General Expenses

+6.45+G48)

G.41 Interest Expense and Bank Charges

G.4 Other Expenses, specify (G.4.1+G4.2 +(3.4.3+GA4

G42

G4.3

GA44

G4b

G4.6

H. FINANCE COSTS

1._NET INCOME (LOSS) BEFORE TAX (F - G- H)

3,609,457

1,441,722

1,047,547

(580,367)

{409,506)

{412,354

J_ INCOME TAX EXPENSE (negative entry)

K. INCOME (LOSS) AFTER TAX

3,029,090

1,032,216

635,193

Post-Tax Gain'or Loss Recognized.on theMeasurement of

constituting the Discontinued Operation (if any)

L. Amount of (i) Post:Tax Profit or Loss ‘of Discontinued Operations; and (if)
Fair Value less

Cost to Sell oron the Disposal of the Assets or Disposal:Group(s)

L1

L2

W. Profit or Loss:Attributable to Minority Interest

N._Profit or Loss Attributable to Equity Holders of the Parent




Controf-No.: $5200602356

Form Typs:

GENERAL FORM FOR FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

GFFS (rov 2006)

NAME OF CORPORATION: GMA HOLDINGS, INC.
CURRENT ADDRESS: 5D Tower One, One McKinley Place, New Bonifacio Global City, Taguig City

TEL.NO.:- 982-7777 loc 8001/8889 FAXNO.;

COMPANY TYPE: Holding Company

If these are based on-consolidated financial statements, please so indicate in the caption.
Table 3. Cash Flow Statements

PSIC:

FINANCIAL DATA 2017 |

2016 |
{in Phillppine Peso)

2015

CASH FLOWS FROM OPERATING ACTIVITIES

Net Income (Loss) Before Tax and Extraordinary ltems 3,609,457

1,441,722

1,047 547 |

Adjustments to Reconcile Net Income to Net Cash Provided by Operafing Activities

Depreciation

‘Amortization, specity: _

{1,919,260)

(1,996,694

(2,052,857)

Others, specify: Interestincome. - )
Interest expense and bank charges

2,021,178

Interest received 1,840,223

2,029,629

Initerest paid ’
fricome {axes paid {583,893)

{406,249)

(410,958

Write-down of Propery, Plant; and Equipment

Changes in Assets and Liabilities:
Decrease (increase).in: .
{346,415)

(389,230

15,550

Receivables
) 193,321

{74,599)

(64,126

Prepaid Tax

Others, specfy:

Increase (Decrease) in:
23,833

37,033

124,680

Accounts payable and accrued expenses
Withholding taxes payable

Others, specify:  Due'to shareholders

641612

530,915

K Nef Cash Provided by (Used () Operating Activities {§um of above rows) 2.917,266

TASH FLOWS FROM INVESTING ACTIVITIES

(increase) Decrease in Long-Term Recelvables

(Increase) Decrease in:Investment ]

Reductions/{Addifions] fo Property, Plant, and Equipment

Others, specify:

B-Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Investing Acivities {sum of above rows}

CASH ELOWS FROM FINANCING ACTIVITIES
Proceeds from:

Loans

Long-term Debt

1ssuance of Securities

Others, specify. Payment of available-for-sale investment

Payments of;

{Loans)

(Long-term Debt)

(Stock Subscriptions)

Others; specify (negative entry): R0
) ;000,000)

(600,000

{499,509

Payment of cash dividends

{499,595

T Net Cash Provided by (Used i) Financing Acfivilies (sum of above Iows) {1,000,000)

7500,000)

IR A DA A R A T ey .
NET INCREASE IN CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS {A+B +C) 1,917,266

Cash and Cash Equivalents .
: 26,888,153

41,612

26,846,541

181,320

26,665,221

76,846,541

Beginning of year
g = " 78,805,419

76,888,105

End of year
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GENERAL FORM FOR FINANGIAL STATEMENTS
‘ GMA HOLDINGS, INC.

Control No.:

Form Type:

5200602356
GFFS {rev 2006)

NAME OF CORPORATION:
GURRENT ADDRESS:
TEL. NO.:

5D Tower One, One McKinley Place N
982-7777 local 8001/8389

COMPANY TYPE : ‘Holding Company

FAXNO.:

ow Bonifacio Global City, Taguig City

if these are based on consolidated financial statements;

please so indicate in.the captfon.
Table 4, Statement:of Chianges in Equity

PSIC:

(in Phiiflppine Peso)

FINANCIAL DATA

Capital Stock

inCagltal | Increment

Additional Pid{ Revaluation. Translation

Differences

Unrealized Gain
(Loss) on AFS
Investment - Net of
Tax

Retained
Earnings

TOTAL

580,530

100,000

(194.477)

675,007

A, Balance, 2015

A Correction.of Efror(s)

A7 Chanaes in Accounting Policy.

B, Restated Balance

C. Surplus
C.1 Surplus (Deficit) on Revaluation: of

Properties

C.2 Surplus (Deficit) on-Revaluation.of

Investments

C.3 Currency Translafion Difference:

18,741

19.741

C.4 Other Surpt ecify)
C4.1 Oth

4.1 Other comprehensive ingome-

c42

¢4l

CcAd

CA4b

1,032,218

1,032,216

D. Net Income (Loss) for the Period

{600,000

(600,000

E. Dividends (negative entrv)

F. Appropriation for {specify)
F.1

F2
F.3

F.4

F.5
G. lssuance of Capital Stock

G,1 Common Stock

G.2 Preferred Stock

G.3 Others

100,000

(174,736}

1,107,223

1,032,487

H. Balance, 2016

H.1 Comection of Error (s)

£1.2 Chanaes in:Accounting Policy

I. Restated Balance

J. Surplus .
J.4 Surplus (Deficit) on Revaluation of

Properties

J.2 Surplus {Deficit) on Revaluation of

Investments

1.3 Currency Translation Differences

1.4 Other.Surplus {specify) .

—[354.763)

(254,763

J:4.1 Other.comprehepsive-1oss

J4.2

J43
J4.d

3,029,090

J.4.5

3,029,090

K. Net Income {Loss) for the Period

11,000,000

(1,000,000

L._Dividends (negative eritry)

M. Appropriation for (specify)
M.A

M.2

M.3

M4

M5

IN. |ssuance of Capital Stock
N.1 Common Stogk

N.2 Preferred Stock

N.3 Others
(. Balance, 2017

100,000

429,499)

3,136,313

2,806,814
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CERTIFICATION

THIS IS TO CERTIFY that in compliance with Article 9(B) of the 1987 Philippine Constitution,
none of the Directors, Independent Directors and Officers of GMA Holdings, Inc. are elected as public
servants and/or appointed in any government agency, local or foreign, without authority of law;
provided however that it must be disclosed that as of this date, Dr. Jaime C. Laya is a Trustee (Director)
of the Cultural Center of the Philippines and Atty. Roberto Rafael V. Lucila is a member of the Bicol
University Board of Regents.

Issued this 10th day of April 2018.

O RAFAEL V. LUCILA
Compliance Officer
GMA Holdings, Inc.

ROB



CERTIFICATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTOR

[, ARTEMIO V. PANGANIBAN, Filipino, of legal age and a resident of 1203

Acacia Street, Damarifias Village, Makati City, after having been duly sworn to in
accordance with law, do hereby declare that:

1.

| am a nominee for independent director of GMA HOLDINGS, INC. and have
been its independent director since 2009;

| am affiliated with the following publicly-listed companies:

Company/Organization Position/ Period of
Relationship Service
GMA Network, Inc. Independent Director 2007 - present
First Philippine Holdings Corporation Independent Director 2007 - present
Metro Pacific Investments Corporation | Independent Director 2007 - present
Manila Electric Company Independent Director 2008 - present
Robinsons Land Corporation Independent Director 2008 - present
Petron Corporation Independent Director 2010 - present
Asian Terminais, Inc. ) Independent Director 2010 - present
Philippine Long Distance Tel. Co. Independent Director 2013 - present
Jollibee Foods Corporation Non-Executive Director 2012 - present
Metropolitan Bank & Trust Company Senior Adviser 2007 - present
Double Dragon Properties Corporation | Adviser 2014 - present
Bank of the Philippine Islands Member, Advisory Council | 2016 - present

(For my full bio-data, log on to my personal website: cjpanganiban.com)

| possess all the qualifications and none of the disqualifications to serve as an
Independent Director of GMA HOLDINGS, INC., as provided for in Section 38 of
the Securities Regulation Code, its Implementing Rules and Regulations and
other SEC issuances.

To the best of my knowledge, | am not related to any director/officer/substantial
shareholder of GMA HOLDINGS, INC. and its subsidiaries and affiliates.

To the best of my knowledge, | am not the subject of any criminal or
administrative investigation or proceeding pending in court.

To the best of my knowledge, | am neither an officer nor an employee of any
government agency or government-owned and controlled corporation.

| shall faithfully and diligently comply with my duties and responsibilities as
Independent Director under the Securities Regulation Code and its Implementing
Rules and Regulations, Code of Corporate Governance and other SEC
Issuances.

| shall inform the Corporate Secretary of GMA HOLDINGS, INC., of any changes
in the above-mentioned information within five (5) days from its occurrence.



APR 10 2090 .
Done this ____day of March, 2018 at Makati City.

ARTEMIO V. PANGANIBAN
» Affiant

APR 10 2018
SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this ____ day of March 2018 at Makati City,
affiant personally appeared before me and exhibited to me his Passport Number
EC2160733 issued on September 22, 2014 by the DFA, Manila and will expire on
September 21, 2019.

Do e ¥55 ATTY. VIBGIIOA.
Page No. 3% NOTARY PUBLIC JOR MAKAT! CITY
Book No. 294~ APPOINTIANT BO, 3-88
Series of 2018. UWTILDEAEMBER 31, 2018
oA RKYPE. ms.&aaaaf 0208
5100 A0k WO, WBREI3/AY
ms:w oc.grxi?ms £ ins AT SAEMABER JAN, 29, 2007
PTR No. 6607630 JAN 03, 2013
EXECUTIVE BLIDG. CENTER
MAKAT! AVE,, COR.. JUPITER



CERTIFICATION OF INDEPENDENT DIRECTORS

{, JAMME C. LAYA, Filipino, of legal age a
Quezon City, after having been duly sworn fo in accor

that:

1.

| am a nomine

its independent director since 2007,

2,

3.

nd a resident of 11 Panay Avenue,
dance with law do hereby declare

e for independent director of GMA HOLDINGS, INC. and have been

| am affiliated with the following companies or organizations (including Government-
Owned and Controlled Corporations):

Company/Organization Position Period of Service
Philippine Trust Company (Philtrust Bank) Chairman and President 2004-present
GMA Network, Inc. and Independent Director 2007-present
GMA Holdings, Inc.
Ayala Land, Inc. Independent Director 2010-present o
Manila Water Company, Ine. Independent Director 2014-present
Philippine AXA Life Insurance Co., Inc. Director 2005-present
Charter Ping An Insurance Corporation Independent Director 2016~
Escuela Taller Foundation.of the Philippines, Inc. Chairman - 2013-present
Don Norberto Ty Foundation, Tric: Chairman 2005-present
Cofradia de la Inmaculada Concepcibn Trustee 1979-present
Heart Foundation of the Philippines, Inc. Trustee ca. 1985-present
CIBI Foundation, Inc. Trustee 1998-preserit
St. Paul University — Quezon City Trustee 2002-present
Fundacién Santiago, Inc. Trustee 2002-present
Cultural Center of the Philippines Trustee 2003-present
Metropolitan Museum of Manila Trustee | ca. 2004-present
Yuchengeo Museum Trustee ca. 2007-present
Society for Cultural Enrichment, Inc. Trustee 2009-present
Ayala Foundation, Inc. Trustee 2013-present
Filipinas Opeta Society Foundation, Inc. Trustee 2014-present
Director ca. 1960-present

[ Various family corporations

| possess all the qualification

Independent Director of GMA HOLDINGS,

Securities Regulation Code,

issuances. -

4.
shareholder of GMA Holdings,

relationship provided under Rule

5.

To the best of my knowiedge, | am not rel
nc. and its subsi

To the best of my knowledge, | am not the s

administrative investigation or proceeding.

6.

the President Memoran

| have the required written or consent from the Pr
the Philippines to be an independent director in GMA Holdi
dum Circular No. 17 and Section 12,

Service Rules.

7.
Independent Dire
and Regulations,

| shall faithfully and diligently compl
ctor under the Securities Re
Code of Corporate Governance an

INC., as pro
its Implementing RU

y
gulation Code and its Im

d other SEC Issuances.

s and none of the disqualifications to serve as an
vided for in Section 38 of the

les and Regulations and other SEC

ated to any direc’to’r/officer/subsfantial
diaries and affiliates other than the

38.2.3. of the Securities Regulation Code.

ubject of any pending criminal or

President of the Cultural Center of
ngs, Inc. pursuant to Office of
Rule XVIIl of the Revised Civil

with my duties and responsibilities as

plementing Rules




8. | shall inform the Corporate Secretary of GMA HOLDINGS, INC., of any changes in
the above-mentjoned information within five (5) days from its gccurrence.

APR 10 204
Done this ____ day of , 2018 at Makati Ci

CTTAPR 10 201
SUBSCRIBED AND SWORN to before me this day of 2018
at Makati City, affiant personally appeared before me and exhibited to me his Passport
Number EC3123777 by the DFA, Manila issued on January 7, 2015.

- Doc. No. 344
Page No :ﬁ
Book No.

Series of 2018. ot of
FACLE COMMIRACE MO, W00 16333/6-10-2013

1B 6.8 7087 L LIEETIRAL MERBER JAN. 29, 2007
PR Mo, 6507ELY- 1AN03, 204R
EXECUTIVE BLDG. CENTER
BAAKATE AVE., COR. JUPITER




Rexas Boulavard, Pasay City 1300, ?’hé!ippine§ Frels: (632) 832-1125 10 39/ Fax: (632)

-Cufitufa] Center of the Philippines

SENTRONG PANGKULTURA NG PILIPINAS

To Whom It May Concerm:

This is to certify that Mr. JAIME C. LAYA Is an incurmbent Trustee
(Director) of the Cultural Center of the Philippines (CCP).

There is nothing in the law (P.D 15, as amended) governing the CCP
which prohibits a trustee of the CCP from becoming a director of a private
corporation. Thus, Mr. Laya has the authorization of CCP to be a Director
of a private sector corporation.

G

Issued this 6th day of March 2018. g
T LIZASO

834.0471 or 832-3683 4 voww.cuftural cenrargovph '



